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IN THE SUPERIOR COURT FOR THE STATE OF ALASKA

FOURTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT AT BETHEL

THOMAS J. OLSON, )
)
{3 Plaintiff, )
3 ) JUL 1 4 2008
vs. )
f} )
| CITY OF HOOPER BAY, OFFICER DIMITRL, )
OAKS, OFFICER CHARLES SIMON, and )
I } OFFICER NATHAN JOSEPH, )
) Case No. 4BE-07-26 CI
Defendants. )
)

DEFEDANTS’ REPLY TQ PLAINTIFF’S OPPOSITION TO MOTION FOR
R MENT D

The predicament Hooper Bay police officers faced when Boya Olson wrapped his legs

aroundapolemdkickedandbitatoﬂicmtryingtogalﬁmtoreleasethepoleandsuindupis :
analogous to the Village Safety Officer’s use of force when arrestee Albert Lee Sheldon grabbed

l the handlebars of a four wheeler and refused to let go in Sheldon v. City of Ambler, 178 P.3d
459 (Alaska 2008). The Alaska Supreme Court affirmed summary judgment on qualified
immunity in favor of the Sheldon officer. The Sheldon officer was protected by qualified
immunity when he used pepper spray, a police baton, and ultimately a “take down” to get

St

ki
: Sheldon to release the handlebars, even when the force resulted in Sheldon’s death. The Olson
Law case i an even stronger case for summary judgment than Sheldon since the arresting officers
ATTCRNEYS AT LAW
PO. BOX 585 here only used a taser (considered “non-lethal” force), and Boya was indisputably kicking and
BETHEL, ALASKA
96558
(807) 343-2972 attempting to bite officers when they tried 1o stand him up or pry him from the pole he’d latched
. Reply to Opposition to Summary Judgment
Olson v. Hooper Bay, Case No. 4BE-07-26 CI Page | of 35
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Angstman Law Office
ATTORNEYS AT LAW
PO BOX 585
GETHEL, ALASKA
M558
‘907) 543-2972

onto. This court should follow the controlling precedent in Sheldon and grant qualified

immunity to the defendants.

Granting summary judgment on qualified immunity is also consistent with Superior
Court Judge Ben Esch’s March 20, 2008 holding in Nickolas Page v. City of Kotzebue, where
Judge Esch held that “use of the Taser on a handcuffed, but resisting Page was within the range

of force a reasonable police officer in [the arresting officer’s] position could decide to use,”
especially under the recent decision of Sheldon v. City of Ambler. See Exhibit A to Defendants’

Memorandum, Page Order at page | and 2.

L Sheldon v, City of Ambler Is Analogous and Controlling.

In Sheldon, two Ambler residents asked \fnllage Police Officer Bryan Jones to “go cool
off Albert [Lee Sheldon).” “He’s drunk” [and] “beating on Dora [Williams].” Id,, 178 P.3d at
461. VPO Jones responded within 5 minutes. He could hear shouting from a distance and
found Albert Sheldon with Dora in the street. Sheldon was intoxicated, “screaming, belligefart
and would ot respond to any of VPO Jones’[s] orders or commands.” Id. Dora was s;aying
she wanted to go home and did not want Sheidon to follow her. Meanwhile, the two residents,
who had requested that Jones respond, drove up on their four-wheeler, offering to give Dora a
ride home. When Dora climbed onto the driver’s four-wheeler, Sheidon grabbed hold of the
handlebars and wouldn’t let go, despite VPO Jones’ commands to do so. Id. After Sheldon
tried to grab the driver’s key and threatened the driver when she brushed his hand aside, VPO
Jones used pepper spray on Sheldon which caused Sheldon to scream even louder. But Sheldon

would not let go of the handlebars or follow any other of the officer’s commands, despite the

Reply to Opposition to Summary Judgment
Olson v. Hooper Bay, Case No. 4BE-07-26 CI Page 2 of 35
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pepper spray. Id. VPO Jones then used his police baton to strike Sheldon on his hands and the

back of his knees. Despite the baton blows, Sheldon still would not comply and release the

handlebars. Id, at 461-462. Jones then struck Sheldon on the back of the head with the baton,

but this also had no effect on Sheldon. Id. at 461. When Sheldon would still not let go of the

o ——

handlebars, VPO Jones put Sheldon in a “bear bug,” wrapping his arms around Sheldon’s arms
f

i] and shoving him. When Sheldon still would not fet go, Jones continuing using the bear hug,

ﬂ shoved again, and performed a “take down” in which both Jones and Sheldon fell to the ground.

i Id. at 462. During the fall, Sheldon landed on the ground under Jones, striking his head. Jones
“ then handcuffed Sheldon who continued yeiling and struggling. Along the way to the jail,
Sheldon collapsed. While getting care from a Health Aide, Sheldon stopped breathing and a

little more than an hour after the incident in the street, Sheldon was declared dead. For

purposes of the qualified immunity analysis, the Supreme Court assumed that Sheldon died from
a blow to the head caused from hitting the ground after Jones’ bear hug and “take down.”

’ In analyzing these facts and concluding that Jones was entitled to qualified immunity, the

} Sheldon Court did not resolve the “further qu&cﬁon” of “whether there is a genuine issue of

j material fact over whether [Jones’] behavior was “objectively reasonable.” Id. at 467. Instead,
the Court simply affirmed the summary judgment in favor of the arresting officer because VPO

" Jones “could have reasonably believed that his use of force was lawful” since Jones had no clear

notice “that a bear hug and a take down are excessive uses of force when applied to an

Angstman Law Office
ATTOANEYS AT LAW
PO. BOX 585 mmtoxicated and assaultive arrestee.” See id.
BETHEL, ALASKA
ING59

(907) 543-2972 The facts in this case are even stronger than in Sheldon. While Sheldon involved the use

‘ Reply to Opposition to Summary Judgment
;| Olson v. Hooper Bay, Case No. 4BE-07-26 CI Page 3 of 35
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of pepper spray, as well as impact blows from a police baton to hands, knees, and head, and a
fatal “bear hug” and “take down,” this case involves the use of a taser, 8 non-lethal weapon,
considered leés harmful than either pepper spray or a baton. See Exhibit L to Defendants’
Memorandum, General Order 2-6 at page 3 (characterizing the taser as a “non-lethal weapon” in
the force continuum which will not “cause injury or long lasting effect on the person™).

Just like Albert Sheldon, Thomas “Boya” Olson was yelling, beiligerent, and apparently
intoxicated. While Sheidon was alleged to have been “beating on” Dora prior to the Village
Officer’s arrival at the scene, Olson indisputably bit at Officer Simon and repeated kicked at the
officers, succeeding in kicking the officers who attempted to control him. See Exhibit K,
Simon’s deposition at 20, 27, 54-55 (biting); Exhibit L, Joseph’s deposition at 30 and 31
(kicking); Exhibit K at 20 and 27 (kicking); Exhibit M, Oaks’ deposition at 23, 63-64 and 74
(kicking).

Like Sheldon, Olson would not listen to officers’ instructions and actively resisted arrest
by wrapping his legs around a pole and refused to let go. Olson was only tased after he painﬁmy
kicked two officers, threatened further kicking which could have resulted in even more serious
injury, bit at an officer several times, twisted to kick at officers no matter what direction they
approached, and refused to unwrap his legs so he could be stood up and escorted outside.
Exhibit K at 20, 29 and 42; Exhibit L at 32; Exhibi¢ M at 64.

As in Sheldon, this Court does not need to be embroiled over a supposed dispute over
whether the arresting officers’ engaged in “excessive force.” There is sufficient reason to grant

summary judgment in defendants’ favor because the arresting officers in thig case had no “clear

Reply to Opposition to Summary Judgment

Olson v. Hooper Bay, Case No. 4BE-07-26 CI Page 4 of 35
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notice” that their use of tasers to protect themselves against bites and kicks and to get Olson to

release his grip on the pole was “unlawful.” Exhibit K at 47 and 58; Eghibit L at 37 and 38.

IL Judge Ben Esch’s March 20, 2008 Qualified Immunity Order in Page v. City of
Kotzebue Is Persuasive Authority.

]
b In Page, a handcuffed Nickolas Page struggled with multiple officers who were
attempting to subdue Page by pressing him into a chair. See Exhibit N at page 5. Page reacted

by wrapping his legs around one of the officers’ legs and then shifting his grip to the officer’s

{ ] upper body, pulling the officer towards him with his legs. [d. The officer reacted by drive
{ } stunning Page in the stomach. The contact was sufficient to cause Page to release his legs’ grip
‘ on the officer. As the officer pulled away from Page, the taser cartridge deployed, and the
{ J probes stuck in Page’s stomach, although no current was deployed. Id. Thus, Judge Esch

evalusted the summary judgment dispute in the context -o?;mltiple officers grappling with a

suspect which resulted in the seated, handcuffed suspect getting tased one or more times in the

' stomach. Instead of gripping a pole and refusing to let go, Nickolas Page resisted efforts to
¥ restrain him by wrapping his legs around an officers legs and then his torso.
& Judge Esch found that Page’s lawsuit was barred by qualified immunity: “[While the
! , actions of defendant Hughes [the deploying officer] may have been objectively unreasonable the
3 use of the Taser on the handcuffed, but resisting Page was within the range of force a reasonable
" police officer in Hughes’ position could decide to use.” See Exhibit I to Defendants’
%i 33,“ Memorandum at page I. Moreover, Judge Esch refused to withhold summary judgment based
Bm?e&::m on arguments that the City of Kotzebue’s written policies or some “model policy” were violated.
oon sar2072
! " Judge Esch explained:
. Reply to Opposition to Summary Judgment
Olson v. Hooper Bay, Case No. 4BE-07-26 CI Page 5 of 35
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The plaintiff argues that the City of Kotzebue policy regarding the use of force should
have placed Hughes on notice that use of the Taser was improper. However, the policy
is very general and as unhelpful as the existing state statute AS 12.25.070. Likewise the
plaintiff suggests the Model Policy on use of Electronic Control Weapons is an
appropriste standard to measure Hughes’ conduct. However, the plaintiff has offered no
evidence such model policy has been adopted by any police agency within Alasks. Even
if the policy had been adopted, it limits the use of electronic weapons to individuals who
are actively resisting, which the defendant was. . . . [Ulnder the recent decision in
Sheldon v. City of Ambler . .. the Court will find that a grant of qualified immunity is

appropriate.
Exhibit I at 1-2, attached to Defendants’ Memorandum.

In Page, it did not matter that the suspect was handcuffed or tased in the stomach while
being pressed down into a chair by multiple officers. The use of the taser while Page tried to
grip an officer by his legs was objectively reasonable. The Qlson case is even stronger than Page
since Boya was kicking and biting at officers while refusing to let go of a pole. Boya
successfuily kicked the officers. It is reasonable to assume Boya could have kicked the officers
still further if they’d continued to grapple with him on the dangerous, slippery floor. See
Exhibit K at 20, 33 and 34 (Simon fell because Boya was kicking and the floor was sﬁpbqy);
Exhibit L at 9-10 (floor was so slippery Joseph had trouble keeping his balance while standing);

Exhibit M at 24 (floor slippery).
0L Plaintiff's Expert Admits that the Officers Were Justified in Pepper Spraying

Olson, 2 Level of Force equivalent to Tasering
Plaintiffs expert, Michael Lyman, does not have any experience with tasers. Exhibit P

at 24. However, Lyman was assigned pepper spray as a police officer. Id. Significantly, Lyman

admitted that the arresting officers in this case would have been justified in using pepper spray

on Olson. Lyman testified:

Reply to Opposition to Summary Judgment
Olson v. Hooper Bay, Case No. 4BE-07-26 C1 Page 6 of 35
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[W]ould pepper spray in your opinion been appropriate?

Q:

A Yes.

Q. Whyis that? :

A Because that's a low level of a control wespon.

Q: And that would be appropriate to gain compliance, to use to gain compliance,
pepper spray?

A Yes.

Id. at 97. This is a very significant admission on the part of plaintiffs expert because the taser

A
‘ and pepper spray were on the same low level of force. See Exhibit G, General Order 2-6 at

4 page 3 (""I'he Taser or OC weapons are generally the first non-lethal weapons used in the
contimum”) If plaintiffs own expert approved the use of pepper spray on Boya, this expert has

q no principled reason to contest the use of a taser.

IV.  Plaintiff Misstates the Record Relevant to the Qualified Immunity Analysis

h Plaintiff tries to toss around as many arguments as he can—whether they are supported

by the record or not—-in an effort to create some sort of “disputed material fact™ as to qualified

immunity, While plaintiff tries to raise all sorts of red herrings, Plaintiff’s arguments are easily

E disposed of. ‘
r } A.  This Court Can Decide “Qualified Immunity” Without Reaching the
Question of Whether the Force Was “Objectively Reasonable™
; Plaintiff’ s Opposition asserts at page 9, that defendants have “misunderstood” the issues,
. reasoning that “only if excessive force is found, [does] the court proceed to . . . the qualified
J immunity prong.” Plaintiff does not actually explain why this court must logically proceed in

e that order. In fact, the Sheldon court “did not need to reach” the factual dispute over whether

ATTORNEYS AT LAW

PO. DOX 585
faliiton VPO Jones’ behavior was “objectively reasonable,” since it affirmed the summary judgment in
1907} 543-2972
Jones’ favor on qualified immunity grounds. Sheldon, 187 P 3d at 467. Likewise, in Sauder,
. Reply to Opposition to Summary Judgment
Olson v. Hooper Bay, Case No. 4BE-07-26 C1 Page 7 of 35
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the U. S. Supreme Court merely “presumed” that excessive force had occurred, proceeded
directly to address the question whether the degree of force was clearly established to be
“unlawful,” and reversed the lower court on qualified immunity grounds alone. Despite
Saucier’s reference to deciding excessive force issues “first,” the United States Supreme Court
did not decide excessive force “had occurred.” In fact, the Supreme Court observed it was
“doubtful that the force used was excessive,” but nevertheless addressed and resolved the case

on qualified immunity grounds. See Saucier v. Katz, 533 U.S. 194 at 207-208, 121 S.Ct. 2151,

2159 (2001).
Both the Alaska Supreme Court and the United States Supreme Court acknowledge that

the qualified immunity and excessive force issues are analytically distinct. See, e.g., Sheldon,
178 P.3d at 463 (since an officer is entitled to qualified immunity if he had a reasonable belief his

conduct was reasonable, even if it was not, the implication is that the immunity analysis does not

turn on a mere finding of “objective unreasonableness”); Saucier, 533 U.S. at 200, 121 S.Ct. at

2155 and 2156 (analysis for qualified immunity is not the same as whether unreasonable force
was used and the lower court couldn’t just “leave it all for the jury” to decide since that would
defeat the purpose of qualified immunity which is an entitlement not to stand trial or face the
burden of litigation). Since the “clear notice” and “reasonable mistake” issues can be decided
separate from whether the trial court makes a threshold finding o “excessive force,” there is no

good reason to complicate the basic qualified immunity analysis.

Plaintiff Does Not Take into Account th;: Fact that Qualified Immunity

B.
ARows for Reasoaable Mistakes

Plaintiff asserts that qualified immunity only applies if the officers’ conduct was

Reply to Opposition to Summary Judgment
Olson v. Hooper Bay, Case No. 4BE-07-26 Cl Page 8 of 35
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“subjectively’ reasonable.” See Plaintif’s Opposition at page 12. That is not a helpful

®
articulation of the standard. The standard is not merely what the officer “felt” was the right
3 conduct, but whether the officer was “reasonable in believing his conduct was legal ” Sheldon,
,] 178 P.3d at 465. Even in a case of “mistake,” acceptable mistakes include the ones a reasonable
: officer under the circumstances would have made, even if the conduct was later determined to
J be objectively unreasonable. Id. at 463. Thus, if a reasonable officer under the circumstances

could have made a mistake, the conduct is “immune” even if the conduct was later determined to

be objectively unreasonable.

[ ] The reasonable “mistake” doctrine is relevant in this case to disregard Boya’s effort in
his affidavit to dispute “the facts.” For example, Boya admits that he and were drinking
home brew that evening, but he disputes he was “intoxicated.” Such an assertion is utterly

irrelevant. When ~ -asked police to check on the welfare of her young children, she

Exhibit O, dispatch

told police that Boya was alone with the kids and “intoxicated.” See, e.g.,
! record. Moreover, there was objectively reasonable evidence of intoxication. The officers

¥ smelled alcohol when they entered the main living space and saw Boya and Peter. See, ¢. g,
Exhibit L at 17 and 23; Exhibit M at 21. Simon observed Boya staggering consistent with

; } Boya being intoxicated. Sec Exhibit K at 24. The arrest tape demonstrates the officers had
, consistent with | being passed out from alcohol. See also Exhibit L

} trouble waking
Angstman Law Omce || 3t 18 and 22. The arrest tape evidences Boya was screaming, yelling and uncooperative,
ATTORNEYS AT LAW
e e consistent with someone being intoxicated. Thus, there was sufficient evidence that Boya and
659
D) 343-2972 were intoxicated even if this was a supposed “mistake.”
. Reply to Opposition to Summary Judgment
Olson v. Hooper Bay, Case No. 4BE-07-26 CI Page 9 of 35
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C. The Alaska Statutes Pisintiff Cites Do Not Establish the Standards for
“Objectively Reasonable” Force

Dlaintiff cites to AS 11.81.370 and AS 12.25.070 as somehow controlling the “qualified

immunity” standard. See Opposition at page 8. However, the Alaska Supreme Court has

expressly rejected this notion. The Sheldon Court clearly explained:

In their brief, the appellants [the estate of Albert Sheldon] contend that [VPO] Jones was
“on potice” that his conduct was excessive because AS 11.81.370 and 12.25.070 gave
him that notice. But these statutes are only general statutes which set out when deadly
force is appropriate . . . . Such statutes cannot purport to give notice to officers that
specific actions taken in specific circumstances may or may not be reasonable.

Sheldon, 178 P.3d at 466. See also Exhibit I to Defendants’ Memorandum, Page order at page
1 (“[T]he [City of Kozebue] policy is very general and as unhelpful as the existing state statute

AS 12.25.070.7).

D. PiaintifP’s “Expert” Does Not Articulate the Controlling “Standards”

1. Lyman Has No Actual Experience with Tasers

In an attempt to raise some sort of fact dispute, plaintiff produces the report of Michael
Lyman a purported “expert.” See Exhibit 9 to Plaintiff's Opposition. However, Mr. Lyman has
no actual experience whatsoever with tasers. For example, Lyman retired from the Kansas and
Oklahoma law enforcement entities he worked for well before tasers were regularly issued
weapons for police departments. Exhibit P, Lyman deposition at 23. Lyman never carried a
taser nor was a taser ever assigned to him when he was a law enforcement officer. Id. at 23 and
41. Lyman has never been tased himself and does not consider himseif a person with personal
knowledge or expertise on the use or effect of tasers. Id. at 41 and 144. Lyman has never
personally witnessed a suspect getting tased. Id. at 50. Lyman has no personal experience of

Reply to Opposition to Summary Judgment
Olson v. Hooper Bay, Case No. 4BE-07-26 CI Page 10 of 35

BT .
[T

§

,___

4

Exc.2178



expertise in judging whether a taser deployment could cause a person’s death. Id, at 45 and

102. Thus, plaintifP's “taser” expert has no expertise or experience with tasers.

2 Lyman I Not an Expert on Alaska Law and His Opinions Directly
Coantradict the Sapreme Court’s Coaclusions in Sheldon v. City of

Ambler
Not only has Lyman absolutely no personal experience as a police officer qualified to use

1

a taser, he also admits “I make no claim to be an expert in constitutional law.” See Plaintiff’s
Exhibit 9 at paragraph 38. Moreover, Lyman knows nothing about Alaska law. See, e.g.,

H Exhibit P at 72 and 74-75.

H For example, when Lyman was asked hypothetically whether the force used under the
facts in Sheldon v. City of Ambler was “unreasonable” and “excessive,” Lyman disagreed

( } “absolutely” with the Alaska Supreme Court. For example, the Sheldon officer responded to the

suspect gripping the handlebars and refusing to let go, by first deploying pepper spray, an option

on the same “level of force™ as a taser. See Exhibit G, Hooper Bay General Order 2-6 at page 3

E and the force continbuum. The Alaska Supreme Court did ﬁot criticize the use of pepper spray in
¥ Sheldon. In contrast, Lyman believed that it would be “inappropriate” for an officer to pepper .
. spray a suspect who refused to let go of handlebars. See Exhibit P at 107-109.
| , The Alaska Supreme Court did not criticize the Sheldon officer’s use of a baton as an
; impact weapon to strike at Sheldon’s hands, knees and head in effort to get Sheldon to release
f the handlebars so he could be escorted away. When asked his opinion, Lyman opined that an
%ﬁ&?‘ officer hitting a suspect with a baton under the Sheldon facts would be “absolutely
s || inappropriate.” Exhibit P at 108.
(907) 543-7972
,
|
. Reply to Opposition to Summary Judgment
Olson v. Hooper Bay, Case No. 4BE-07-26 CI Page 11 of 35
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While the Sheldon Court concluded that the arresting officer had “no clear notice” that
escalating to a “bear hug” and “take down” was “excessive use of force when applied to an
intoxicated and assaultive arrestee,” Lyman opined that wrestling 8 person to the ground under
the facts in Sheldon would be “deadly force” and “absolutely inappropriate.” See Exhibit P at
page 108.

These examples show that Lyman has no understanding of Alaska law and he cannot
reconcile his premise of “objectively reasonable force” with the Alaska Supreme Court’s analysis
of the controlling Alaska’s standards in Sheldon.

Clearly, Lyman never bothered to consider Sheldon v, City of Ambler when he analyzed
the applicable standards in this case. Since Lyman reaches the opposite conclusion than the
Alaska Supreme Court on the reasonable “use of force,” as illustrated by the Sheldon case,
Lyman is no “authority” on what is objectively reasonable use of force in Alaska.

3.  The Relevant Standard Is Not the “Least Amount of Force”

In a perversion of the applicable standards, Lyman further argues at paragraph 40 of his
report that he believes the “implication” oJf the IACP model policy is that “all lower level means
to accomplish control of a subject must be used before resorting to a higher level.” See
Plaintif’s Exhibit 9 at page 5, paragraph 40.

However, Lyman is simply wrong to assume that “lower level alternatives” are the
standard for judging whether force was “reasonable” or “unlawful.” Just because an otficer uses
more than the minimum amount of force necessary does not mean a jury will find that the officer

acted “unreasonably.” Courts soundly reject Lyman’s notion that the applicable standard is the

Reply to Opposition to Summary Judgment
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“lesser alternative” since this is not the same thing as a “reasonable” response. See, e.g.,
Chamberiin v, City of Albuqueque, 2005 U. S. District LEXIS 21910 (D. N.M. 2005) (Court
granted motion in limine excluding evidence that a less intrusive means of force could have been
employed in lieu of using a police dog to apprehend a suspect, becausc the “lesser alternative”
was not appropriate standard); United States v. Melendez-Garcig, 28 F.3d 1046, 1052 (10* Cir,

1994) (Fourth Amendment “does not require [police officers] to use the least instrusive means in

the course of detention, only reasonable ones”); Taylor v. Hudson, 2003 U.S. Dist. LEXIS

26736 (D. N.M. 2003) (evidence of less intrusive alternatives was irrelevant to the Fourth

Amendment reasonableness inquiry and thus was inadmissible).

Thus, it simply does not matter to the qualified immunity or the “excessive force”

L SR

analysis that an officer “could have done something different” or “could have employed a less

forceful alternative.”
4. Lyman’s Reference to an U.S. Supreme Court “Standard” Does Not
E Salvage His Opinions
Attempting to suggest a legal gloss on his opinions, Lyman cites to Graham v, Congor,
‘; j 490 U S. 396, 109 S.Ct. 1865 (1989) as if he is tapping the relevant constitutional standards.
{ ’ See Plaintiff’s Exhibit 9, Lyman’s report at page 4, paragraph 36. Likewise, plaintiff's
‘ Opposition assumes that Graham “established the ‘objectively reasonable’ standard for judging
¥
; excessive force” and placed the Hooper Bay officers “on notice” that their use of force was
N Lew “excessive.” See page 10 and 14 of Plaintiff’s Opposition.
ATTORNEYS AT LAW o
o "O:li‘;’u Plaintiff and Lyman over-claim Graham and what constitutes “notice” of unlawful use of
W59
'907) 543-2972 force, especially conceming tasers. Graham was not a taser case. Graham did not involve an
. Reply to Opposition to Summary Judgment r
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arrestee who bit or kicked at officers. In Graham, the police officers mistook a suspect’s
diabetic reaction and ugconsciouspess as a sign of intoxication and refused the suspect orange
juice. See Graham, 490 U.S. at 389, 109 S.Ct. at 1868. Graham simply does not reasonably
resemble the facts of this case. Moreover, in a more recent case, the U. S. Supreme Court
remarked that “Graham does not always give a clear answer as to whether a particular
application of force will be deemed excessive by the courts.” Saucier, 533 U.S. at 205, 121
S.Ct. at 2158. Thus, the Graham case does not help either Lyman or the plaintiff argue that the

arresting officers in this case were on “notice” their conduct was unlawful.

5. Lywan’s Reliance on the Recommendations of the International
Association of Chiefs of Police Is Misplaced

Lyman asserts in his report that a “professional policing organization”—the “IACP”—has
a “center” to “assist law enfo-roemem administrators” to “develop law enforcement policies” that
“reflect nationally recognized professional practices.” See Plaintiff’s Exhibit 9 page 5 at
paragraphs 40 and 41, However, Lyman does not actually provide a shred of evidence that any
law enforcement organization in Alaska has adopted any IACP standards. For this reason,
Judge Ben Esch refused to consider supposed “model policies” relied on in Page.
Judge Esch concluded that without evidence an Alaska police department adopted such
standards, they were not dispositive of the qualified immunity analysis. Judge Esch explained:

[T)he plaintiff suggests the Model Policy on use of Electronic Control Weapons is an

appropriate standard to measure [the arresting officer’s] conduct. However, the plaintiff
had offered no evidence such model policy has been adopted by any police agency within

Alaska.
Page Order at page 1 attached to Defendants’ Memorandum at Exhubit .

Reply to Opposition to Summary Judgment
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Even if this Court considers the IACP “recommendations” on the use of “electronic

control devices,” those recommendations raise more questions than they answer and are,

therefore “unbelpful” to the jury under Alaska Evid. R. 703. For example, Lyman admits that

“electronic control devices™ are not just tasers, but inchude other devices which Lyman neither

]

lists nor explains. See Exhibit P at 41-42. Thus, plaintiff asks the court to consider a

|

G recommendation without understanding the full range and nature of the devices it refers to.
Second, it is clear that the supposed “model policy” isn’t a firm or discrete “rule.” For

example, in the IACP policy language Lyman relies on the prerequisites of “overt intention to

“ use violence” and “unavailable alternatives” are mere “cautions.” See Plaintiff's Exhibit 9 at

( } paragraph 43. The IACP says with these “cautions in mind” “ECW’s may be deployed
consistent with a professionally recognized philosophy of use of force.” This is not helpful

standard since the IACP does not clarify a single, mandstory standard other than the “reasonably

necessary” rule. Seeid. If the point of the IACP’s “model policy” is that a police department

l should adopt a professional standard consistent with the “reasonableness™ rule, such a position is
{,‘ j too general to be a helpful standard in a civil case. Indeed, courts routinely exclude evidence of
{, police department standard operating procedures as the proper standard for evaluating violations
j of constitutional rights. See, e.g., Davig v, Scherer, 468 U.S. 183, 194-195, 104 S. Ct. 3012,

) 3019 (1984) (officials sued for constitutional violations do not lose their qualified immunity

Law merely because their conduct violates some administrative provision), W}uen v, United States,

ATTORNEYS AT LAW
PO. BOX 583 517 U.S. 806, 815, 116 S. Ct. 1769, 1775 (1996) (Court rejects the use of local police
BETHEL, ALASKA
39559
(907) 543-2972 regulations that required an “immediate threat" as the standard for evaluating constitutionality of
|

' Reply to Opposition to Summary Judgment

Olson v. Hooper Bay, Case No. 4BE-07-26 CI Page 15 of 35
N

| Exc.222



Angstman Law Office
ATTORNEYS AT LAW
PO. BOX 588
BETHEL, ALASKA
99559

police conduct), Tanberg v. Sholtis, 401 F.3d 1151, 1163-1164 (10* Cir. 2005) (“That an arrest
violated police department procedures does not make it more or less likely that the arrest
implicated the Fourth Amendment, and the evidence of the violation is therefore irrelevant.”).
Even if the so-called modei policy is worth considering, it was satisfied m this case.
First, the model policy prohibits use of an “electronic coatrol device” “unless the person
demonstrates an overt intention to use violence or force against the officer.” Those
requifements were met in this case. Boya was kicking at the officers and ignored verbal
warnings to stop before the first taser was deployed. See Exhibit A to Defendants’
Memorandum at 20:28 (“Stop trying to kick; stop trying to bite and comply!” on arrest tape);
Simon’s Affidavit at 20 et seq. Even Lyman admits the tasering happened after Boya kicked the
officers and after Boya refused to comply with officers commands to stop kicking. See Exhibit

P at 80, 120 and 137. Also, while Lyman ignores the biting issue, Boya was tased after he
ignored Simon’s command to stop trying to bite. Sec Exhibit K at 29, Exhibit A, arrest tape at

20:28; Exhibit M at 29 and 30. The biting and kicking were “overt” intentions to use “violence
and force” agginst the officers. Therefore, even if the so-called model policy applied, it was

satisfied.

Second, the model policy says that an electronic control device can be used when a
person “resists” “and other alternatives for controlling them are not reasonable or available
under the circumstances.” See Plaintiff's Exhibit 9 at paragraph 43. Boya was clearly not
cooperating with officers’ verbal instructions. See, e.g., Exhibit A, arrest tape at 23:09 — 23.04

(“Boya, if you don’t comply I'm going to drive stun you. Let go of the pole™); id. at 20:28

Reply to Opposition to Summary Judgment
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(“Stop trying to kick; stop trying to bite and comply!™); id. at 18:37 (“Stop. Boya, stop. Stop
resisting. Stop resisting. Cooperate. Stop resisting. Are you going to comply? Are you going
to comply? Are you going to comply? Stand up. Stand up, Boya.”). See also id, at 16:32 and
15:34 (more instructions to “Stand up and comply” with no sign Boys is cooperating).

Officer Simon and Oaks both testified that they each tried to pin down Boya’s legs to
stop Boya from kicking, but this just caused Boya to kick at Simon some more. See Exhibit K
at 50, Exhibit M at 61. The arresting officers also testified that it was hard to gain control of
Boya because he was twisting and pivoting on the floor to avoid officers’ efforts to restrain him
from whatever direction they approached. See Exhibit K at 20, 29 and 50; Exhijbit L, at 32;
Exhibit M at 64. When Simon tried to lift Boya up, Boya bit at Simon more than once. See
Exhibit K at 20, 27, 54 and 55; Exhibit M at 29 and 30, Moreover, Boya’s twisting and
turning while alternatively grasping the pole and kicking at officers occurred in a particularly
dangerous location near the top of the stairs and where the floor was so slippery Officers Simon
and Oaks had already fallen. Under these facts, and in the heat of the struggle, a reasonable
police officer would not have had “clear notice” that the use of a taser was unlawful, evén under

the supposed mode! policy.

6. Even if it Was Relevant, the Officers Complied with the Hooper Bay
General Order 2-6 and its Force Continaum

The Hooper Bay General Order is not intended to articulate a standard of conduct in
civil actions. See General Order 2-6 at page 1, attached to Defendants’ Memorandum as Exhibit
G. General Order 2-6’s intent is that it is not practical to “define the levels of force appropriate

in any given situation.” See id, at page 2. “Nothing in this order requires an officer to start at

Reply to Opposition to Summary Judgment
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the bottom of the force contimuum. Officers must use a level of force that they feel will be

effective and is objectively reasonable.” Id.

Plainﬁﬁ’sOpposiﬁonummthndnonlymstancewhmmoﬁiwcoxﬂdtaxs ﬂ
handcuffed suspect under General Order 2-6 is if the suspects conduct “present[ed] an [
immediate threat of death or great bodily harm or substantial physical injury.” Opposition at ]
page 13. In actuality, plaintifP's Opposition misquotes the Hooper Bay general order by deleting :]
and changing words. The actual general order reads: u

The Advanced Taser shall not be used on a restrained or controlled subject unless the
actions ofthe subject premt an lmmedmte thteat ofdeath or gwat bodlly harm or

Exhibit G, General Order 2-6 at page 8 (emphasis added). In misquoting the general order, ; i
plaintiff fails to comprehend that a “substantial physical struggle that could result in injury” to

the deploying officer or others was also an allowed use of a taser.
Moreover, the Hooper Bay force coatinuum provided that when a suspect was “pulling

away . . . struggling and not complying on physical contact” use of a taser was a “reasonable
officer response” even “where injury is not expected.” See Exhibit G, Hooper Bay force
continuum. In fact, to the extent Boya’s biting and kicking constituted an “attack on [an]
officer, strikes, wrestling and undirected strikes with injury potential” the Hooper Bay force
continuum gave officers’ natice that “impact weapons strikes and empty hand strikes” were a ' }
“reasonable officer response.” See id. This means that under Hooper Bay internal guidelines, :

the officers could have responded with even greater force that a taser, including use of a baton

or hand strikes.

Reply to Opposition to Summary Judgment |
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There is 0o reasonsble dispute that under the express terms of the Hooper Bay force
continuum, use of a taser was a “reasonable officer response” to Boya's biting and kicking at
officers, especially when Boya succeeded in kicking the officers. [n additian, Boya’s degree of
resistance involved a “substantial physical struggle” and Boya’s kicking and biting posed a risk
that the officers could be injured. For example, if the officers had continued to try to pry Boya’s
legs from around the pole, their faces could have been positioned directly in front of Boya’s
kicking legs, posing a danger for the officers. Even Lyman grudgingly admits Boys kicking the

officers in the face was a “reasonable fear.” Lyman testified:

Q:  And it’s true, is it not, that by wrestling . . . when you have someone’s who’s
already kicked you, trying to pry his legs off, that one of the fears when you pry
his legs off is that he’ll kick you? That’s a fear, a reasonable fear, right?

A: It’s a fear.

Q: And it’s a reasonable fear, right?

A Well, it’s a reasonable fear. . .

re

Q: Let me talk about that a little bit. First of all, it they’re going to pry his legs off
the pole, what are they going to use to pry them off?

A: They would use their arms, their strength.

Q: And to use their arms to pry off the legs, they’re going to have to end down and
grab a hold of the foot or ankle or something, right?

A That’s right.

L

Q (M]y question was, if they go down and grab at his foot, their face is in close
proximity to his foot, right?

Right.

And . . . as they’re pulling and he releases the pressure and kicks up at them in
the face, they could easily knock out a tooth, break their nose, its doesn’t take

much to do that with a foot, does it?
A Well, you said it he was able to do that. And it he was able to do that, I think

that would be a consequence of that. . .

Q>

Reply to Opposition to Summary Judgment ,
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Exhibit P at 85-87.

Lyman also testified that a single individual can present “a challenge” to 2 or 3 officers.
Id, at 28. And the ability of multiple officers to subdue a resisting suspect depends on the
capacity of the arrestee to “deliver a strike with their fist or their feet.” Id. Lyman admits that
even a handcuffed suspect could cause injury to a police officer “[plrovided they are in a tactical
position to do s0.” Id, at 30.

The arrest tape confirms that the officers were in a “substantial struggle” to restrain
Boya, avoid his kicks and get him to stand up. See Exhibit A, arrest tape at 24:40 through
15:04. Even when Joseph succeeded in subduing and joined Simon and Oaks’ effort to
restrain Boya, it took all three officers several minutes to get Boya to comply. Seeid. at 19:30
to 15:04. There is no dispute that Boya admits he was “fighting” In fact, during the walk to
the police station, Boya is heard in the arrest tape saying: “I want a drink from fighting with
you guys.” 1d. at 12:34 and 12:25. Boya also admits on the tape: “T was resisting.” Id, at
10:13 to 9:47.

Since it took three police officers several minutes to subdue Boya, the incident with
Boya was a “substantial struggle.” During that struggle, Boya himseif admits he was “fighting”
and “resisting.” Given these facts, there is no reasonable dispute that the arresting officers
complied with Hooper Bay department policy and tased in the midst of a “substantial physical
struggle that could result in injury to themselves or any person including the deploying officer.”

See General Order 2-6 at page 8.

E. Plaintiff Misstates [.yman’s Opinion on Whether Boya’s Kicking Was
Tutentional

Reply to Opposition to Summary Judgment
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Mischaracterizing Lyman’s opinions, plsintiff counsel cites to Lyman as his authority for
the notion that while “plaintiff may have made [movements] that could have resembled kicks,
[they] must be interpreted as muscle twitches resulting from taser applications.” See Plaintiff's

Opposition at page 11 n.78.
However, when defendants deposed Lyman, plaintiff's expert denied that he believed the

Taser caused any involuntary kicking. Lyman testified;

Q: You're not of the opinion, are you, that the use of the Taser, that was causing

Boya to kick? Let me ask that in a different way. It’s not your opinion that

Boya wasn’t actually kicking, but his muscles were twitching because he was

being Tased? ’

1 think that would be a clinical determination beyond my expertise.

In fact, that with the Tasering, you're not aware of anything from [what] you

read that Tasering would cause you to voluntarily kick or punch or something

like that?

Right. It relaxes the muscle groups.

Right. Okay. So in your paragraph earlier, where you said after being drive

stunned several time Boya—I think you clarified—continued kicking . . . your

belief is that those were intentional, voluntary kicks by Boya?

A .. . . [B]ased on my understanding of the use of the Taser, I think its safe to say
that they didn’t resuit from the electrical charge from the Taser.

=

o

Exhibit P at 142-143.
Given Lyman’s actual testimony, it is flat-out wrong for plaintiff's counsel to argue in

the Opposition at page 17 and 18 that “[p]laintiff’s expert opines the ‘kicks’ could only
reasonably be interpreted as reactions to the taser,” as if Boya was kicks were mere muscie
“twitches.” Lyman actual testimony is that “it is safe to say” the kicks were not a result of the
taser’s electrical charge. See Exhibit P at 143, Thus, as the record stands, plaintiff has
absolutely no admissible evidence that a reasonable officer would have perceived that Boya’s

kicking was other than intentional, voluntary kicks by Boya directed to the police officers
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attempting to get him to stand. This conclusion is also consistent with Boya’s admission on the
arrest tape that he was “fighting” with the officers. See Exhibit A, arrest tape at 12:34 and

12:25.

A. As a Threshold Matter, Oaks Is Entitled te Qualified Immunity

Plaintiff s Opposition does not explain why Officer Oaks should not be immediately
entitled to qualified immunity since it is undisputed he didn’t use a taser and was not even armed
with a taser. Similarly, the City is entitled to partial summary judgment to the extent plaintiff has

made a claim against the City based on Oaks’ conduct.

B. Qualified Immunity Focuses on Whether the Officers Had “Clear Notice”
their Use of Force Was Unlawful

Plaintiff concedes that “[i]f the law did not put the officer on notice that his conduct

would be clearly unlawful, summary judgment based on qualified immunity is appropriate.”

Opposition at page 9 (quoting Sheldon, 178 P.3d at 463 and citing Saucier, 533 U S. at 202).
“Clearly unlawful” is the operative phrase. The standard assumes “a reasonable officer in the
situation he confronted” not simply “the officer.” See Saucier, 533 U.S. at 202, 121 S.Ct. at
2156 (the issue is whether it “would be clear to a reasonable officer that his conduct was
unlawful in the situation he confronted.”). Thus, it is error to deny summary judgment on
qualified immunity “any time a material question of facts remains on the excessive force claims.”

Id. “If the law did not put the officer on notice that his conduct would be clearly unlawful,” the

defendant is entitled to immunity. Id.

Reply to Opposition to Summary Judgment
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“Twenty/twenty” hindsight does not apply to the qualified immumnity analysis. Saycier,
533 USS. at 205, 121 S.Ct. at 2158. The only relevant perspective is that of “reasonsble officers
on the scene.” Id. Moreover, qualified immuanity protects against reasonable mistakes. Thus,
“if an officer reasonably, but mistakenly believed that a suspect was likely to fight back, for
instance, the officer would be justified in using more force than in fact was needed.” Id. See
also Sheldon, 178 P.3d at 463 (“[t]he concern of the immunity inquiry is to acknowledge that
reasonable mistakes can be made as to the legal constraints on particular police conduct . . . . If

the officer’s mistake as to what the law requires is reasonable, . . . the officer is entitled to the
immunity defense. In other words, a reasonable but mistaken believe can confer immunity on an

officer even after it has been established that the officer . . . behave{ed] unreasonably.”).

The U. S. Supreme Court continues:

It is sometimes difficult for an officer to determine how the relevant legal doctrine, here

excessive force, will apply to the factual situation the officer confronts. An officer might
correctly perceive all of the relevant facts but have a mistaken understanding as to
whether a particular amount of force is legal in those circumstances. If the officer’s

1 mustake as to what the law requires is reasonable, however, the officer is entitled to the
immunity defense.

‘ i} LR ]

! Qualified immunity operates, then . . . to protect officers from the sometimes “hazy
border between excessive and acceptable force.”

: Saucier, 533 U.S. at 206, 121 S.Ct. at 2158.

Finally, the standard is “reasonableness at the moment.” [d, at 206, 121 S.Ct. at 2159.

Angstman Law Office
ATTORNEYS AT LAW
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BE{’TgﬂBf’MM This recognizes the “reality that ‘police officers, in pursuit of their dangerous and important

39559
(907) 543-2972 jobs, are often forced to make difficult decisions regarding the use of force.”” Sheldon, 178
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P 3d at 467, See also Graham, 490 U S. at 396-397, 109 S.Ct. at 1872 (“The calculus of
rcasonableowmustmbodyallowmceforthefactthatpoh’ceoﬁimmoﬁcnforcedwmake
split-second judgments—in crcumstances that are tense, uncertain, and rapidly evolving—about

the amount of force that is necessary in a particular situation.”).

C. PlaintifT Fails to Establish the Officers Had “Clear Notice” their Conduct
Was Unlawful

1. Number of Deployments
Plaintiff s arguments for why the use of the taser was unlawful must fail. First, plaintiff

asserts he was tased “12 to 15 times.” Opposition at page 17. However, just because the taser
was deployed numerous times does not mean it was effective each time it deployed. Plantiff's
expert admits that when Joseph first deployed the taser using the probes, the cartridge had no
effect. See Exhibit P at 48. Next, plaintiff’s expert admits that when Simon deployed his taser
in a drive stun mode and Olson r&cponded “Is that the best you got, bitch? Feels like a
wbrator!” this was evidence that Olson’s drive stun did not work. See id, at 49.

As for the rest of the taser deployments, Lyman is of no assistance to plaintiff, because
he is not an “expert” on the effect of the taser and he “couldn’t say” when or how many times
the taser made sufficient contact with Olson to cause cither pain or muscle effects. See id. at 23
and 52. As for the defense argument that the sound of the taser on the arrest tape evidenced the
taser was shorting out, Lyman could not refute this point. Lyman admitted that while he

understood the Taser manual talked about “Silence is Golden,” Lyman “could not recall” what

this meant. See id, at 141-142.

Reply to Opposition to Summary Judgment
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Thus, the mere fact there were multiple taser deployments does not prove one way or the

other than the taser was working or causing Boya pain. A reasonable officer on the scene, in the

[F! heat of Boya’s struggling, would have realized according to his training that Boya’s struggling
. could prevent the taser from making sufficient contact with Boya, as evidenced by the sounds

53 the taser was shorting out. See also Exhibit Q, Hoelscher deposition at page 10-11 (the sound
3 of the taser is evidence there is insufficient contact with the suspect; a person would only feel a

“tap” of electricity rather than the effect intended).

2, Tased “on the ground”
i Boys asserts he was tased while “handcuffed on the ground.” Opposition at 17. The

handcuffing did not prevent Boya from kicking and attempting to bite officers. See, e.g.,

:

Exhibit M at 63; Oaks Affidavit at 4; Simon Affidavit at 6; Joscph Affidavit at 14; Exhibit A,

arrest tape at 20:28 (“Stop trying to kick; stop trying to bite and comply!”) The fact Boya was
“on the ground” isn’t a fair characterization since Boya was struggling, twisting and turning on 2

g slippery floor near the top of some stairs. When Simon or Oaks tried to approach Boya he’d
: J turn or twist towards whomever was nearest and try to kick them. See Exhjbit K at 20 and 29;
Exhibit L at 32; Exhibit M at 31, 37 and 40. That is the opposite of someone passively sitting
J on the ground. Even Lyman admits that a person can “become aggressive and violent after
’ being handcuffed” See Exhibit P at 30. Lyman also admits that when they are in a position to
El
Angstman Law Omce || 40 30, €ven a handcutfed person “can cause injury to a police officer.” Id.
ATTORNEYS AT LAW
PO. ) 4 - : .y e
gagae"’nf“ Sheldon is the best evidence that Alaska does not prohibit even the use of a baton when
93559
(907 543-2872 a suspect threatens injury to others and grabs onto an obstacle, refusing commands to let go.
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Given Sheldon, cases outside Alaska are of marginal interest. See Sheidon, 178 P.3d at 466
(questioning whether a reasonable police officer should be informed of cases from Idaho in
regards to the "clear notice” issue).

However, even if the court considers outside cases, there is no "clear notice" that a
“handcuffed” suspect can not be lawfully tased, particularly when he is kicking and biting at
officers and refussing to let go of a pole and stand. See, e g, Devoe v. Rebant, 2006 WL 334297
*7 (E.D.Mich. 2006) (drive-stun to lower right back of handcuffed suspect who refused to get
into police car was objectively reasonable and did not constitute excessive force where arrestee
was resisting officers’ commands to enter the police car and was arguing with officers);
Willkomm v, Mayer, 2006 WL 582044 *3 and *4 (W.D. Wis. 2006) (three drive stuns on
handcuffed arrest who failed to comply with officers’ orders were objectively reasonable),
Carroll v. County of Trumball, 2006 WL 1134206 at *10-11 and 12-13 (N.D. Ohio 2006)
(multiple tasers on a violent, thrashing, resisting handcuffed arrestee were reasonable).

In contrast, the cases cited by plaintiff are readily distinguishable because the suspect was
not struggling or refusing to comply at the time the person was tased. See, e.g., Harris v. Co. of

King, 2006 WL 2711769 at *1 and 3 (W D. Wa. 2006) (defendant had his hands in the air in

surrender when he was tased); Beaver v, City of Federal Way, 2006 WL 3203729 at *1-2 (W.D.
Wa. 2006) (defendant's movements on floor were so ambiguous there was a dispute whether he

was resisting or just in pain); Rios v, City of Fresno, 2006 WL 3300452 at *9-10 (E.D. Cal
2006) (disputed fact whether the arrestee resisted in any way); Hudson v. City of San Jose, 2006

WL 1128038 at *4 (N.D. Cal. 2006) (baton and taser used when officer completely pinned
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suspect); Muro v. Simpson, 2006 WL 2536609 at *$ (E.D. Cal. 2006) (suspect tased while
standing still; no evidence suspect was kicking or overtly attempting to strike officers). Thus,
even if a reasonable police officer should have had "notice” of unpublished cases from other

jurisdictions, these cases were not clear notice a taser was unlawful in this instance since Boya

was biting and kicking at officers.
3. Speculating the “Kicks” Didn’t “Hurt”

Plaintiff contests whether Boya’s kicks actually posed a threat to the officers. See
Opposition at page 17. Plaintiff counsel reasons that if Officer Simon was able to aim a taser at
Boya’s thigh, then Simon must have felt relatively “safe” from Boya’s kicking. - As a threshold
matter, the relevant standard is not whether Boya had actually caused a life threatening injury. It
was sufficient that Boya’s kicking (or biting) posed a reasonable risk of injury to the police
officer as perceived by a reasonable police officer under the circumstances. Even Lyman admits
that the use of force is not limited to “self-defense. Exhibit P at 37. Lyman does not even think
that an officer must first be injured” before a taser can be deployed. Id, at 135. Furthermore,
gaining “compliance” can be a circumstance where the use of force is appropriate. Id. at 36-37.

Thus, plaintiff's quibbling over whether Boya’s kicks “hurt” or whether Simon felt
threatened the precise instant he tased Boya’s thigh are all red herrings. Even if the court wants

to consider the issue, however, the officers testified that Boya’s kicks “hurt”. See, e.g., Simon

- Affidavit at paragraph 6; Oaks’ Affidavit at paragraph 5 and Exhibit M at 23, 63-64 and 74,

Josephs’ Affidavit at paragraph 14.

4, The Supposed “Alternative” that the Officers Could Have Stood
Boya Up
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 Plaintiff asserts that Boya did not pose a threat because the “officer could have stood
him up if they wanted.” Opposition at 17. But this completely ignores Simon’s testimony that
Olson tried to bite Simon more than once when Simon held Boya’s arm and tried to lift him up.
See Exhibit K at 20, 27, 54 and 55. Also Officer Oaks testified that whenever he or Simon
tried to get bchmd or sround Boya, Boya would kick at whoever got closest. See Exhibit M at
31,37, 40 and 64. Moreover, this issue is a red herring since “lesser alternatives” are not the
test for whether the force was “reasonable.” See part IT.D.3.
5. The Supposed Deployments When Boya Was on His Stomach
Plaintiff tries to arguematsomctasingocan‘red“whi]eplaimiﬁ'was{yingfacedownon
his stomach” when plaintiff was “clearly not a threat.” Opposition at 17. Plaintiff is utterly
speculating here. The arrest tape does not evidence tasering during any calm moments; Boya is
actively fighting on the arrest tape. See Exhibit A, arrest tape at 21:59 to 15:04. There is
noting on the arrest tape to suggest that Boya is passively laying on his stomach when any of the
tasers are deployed. In fact, Lyman admits that any of the supposed taser marks on Boya’s back
could have just as easily been “consistent” with Boya was getting tased as he was sitting up and
kicking at the officers. See Exhijbit P at 115.
This was a rapidly involving struggle in which police officers were grabbling with a
heavy set man on a slippery floor. Two officers were not enough to control and restrain Boya,
so eventually Joseph had to join in. If a taser deployment occurred while Boya was “on his
stomach” it could have easily been a momentary state with Boya “twisting” and “turning” away,

as the officers described in their depositions. See Exhibit K at 20 and 29; Exhibit L at 32;

Reply to Opposition to Summary Judgment
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Exhibit M at 64. The inference plaintiff wants the Court to make is that the officers contimied

to tase Boya even after he was compliant. But the arrest tape does not support this. In fact, the

arrest tape supports the opposite inference. On the arrest tape, Boya refuses to stand up for

1

several minutes well after the last taser deployment. Nevertheless, the tasing does not occur

during this time frame. Instead, the officers try to simply talk to Boya in an effort to “de-
f} escalate” the situation. Over and over again, the officers calmly ask Boya if he is going to

standup and “comply.” See, e.g., Exhibit A, arrest tape at 15:04 to 13:47. When Boya

eventually does stand it is not because he is being tased on his stomach, it is because he finally

.

chose to listen to the officers’ instructions.

6. “Tasing for Compliance”

g
i1

Plaintiff tries to argue that since the officers told Boya to “comply” before tasing him,

then some of the tasings “were done for compliance purposes,” and this is somehow prohibited.

The Supreme Court’s analysis in Sheldon undermines the premise of plaintiff’s argument. The

Sheldon Court explained the officer’s use of pepper spray, strikes by a police baton, and other
; escalating levels of force all occurred because Sheldon “would not let go of the handlebars
‘ despite VPO Jones’[s] commands that he do so.” Thus, the Sheldon Court perceived no trouble
! justifying the officer’s use of force to gain Sheldon’s compliance in letting go of the handlebars.
If the Alaska Supreme Court in Sheldon had no trouble with lethal use of force to gain
Low Omice || compliance,” this court should have no difficulty with officers using non-lethal force for
ATTORNEYS AT (AW
PO. BOX 535 compliance.
BETHEL, ALASKA
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Plaintiff argues, without citing to the record, that the arresting officers had no
“knowledge” of Boya's prior criminal record. See Opposition at page 18. This misrepresents
the officers’ depositions. For example, Officer Joseph confirmed his understanding before
responding to the welfare call, that Boya had a history of assaultive, uncooperative and
combative behavior with police. See Exhibit L, at 9, 13-15. Officer Oaks also remembered
Boya’s previous disorderly conduct. See Exhibit M at 59.

Even if the officers hadn’t recalled the specific details of Boya’s run-ins with police,
there was sufficient evidence of Boya’s active resistance on the arrest tape to impress a
reasonable police officer at the scene that Boya posed a risk of injury to the officers. Not only
was Boya kicking and biting at the officers, but one of the officers is expresgly telling Boya to
stop kicking and biting. See Exhibit A at 20:28. Thus, the defendants do not have to depend on
their prior knowledge of Boya’s criminal record to justify their use of force, although it is
“relevant.” '

s The Supposed “Punitive” Intent
Plaintiff argues that a taser aimed at the inside of Boya’s thigh “intended” to strike

Boya’s genitals and was “meant to be punitive.” Opposition at page 19. Plamtiff wildly asserts
“guch tases can have no legitimate purpose and are clearly malicious.” Id. On the contrary,
Lyman admits that the taser training instructs officers to tase a suspect on the inside of their
thigh since this is an effective target. See Exhibit P at 116. Lyman also admits that aiming a

taser at someone’s thigh would be a logical response to an officer attempting to get & suspect to

release his grip on the pole. Id. at 116-117.
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Plaintiffs do not point to any part of the arrest tape documenting when the tasing officer
supposedly aimed the taser for a “punitive” effect. Indeed, the arrest tape is striking in that the
officers’ voices are quiet, calm and respectful when talking to Olson. Lyman also remarked on
how police and respectful the officers sounded with Boya. See Exhibit P at 130-131. In fact, it
is when the officers are talking to each other or the dispatch that their anxiety level is more
apparent. Sce, ¢.g., Exhibit A, arrest tape at 17:31-23.

9, “Continuous” tasing

Plaintiff argues that the tasings were “continuous” and could not have been “legitimate.”
However, the only reason plaintiff is complaining of “continuous” tasing is the sound on the tape
and the sound on the tape is evidence the tager was shorting out and not having the proper
effect. Exhibit Q, Hoelscher deposition at 10-11.

Also, the actual record shows that the officers trying to minimize the tasering by
deploying for 2 seconds bursts, rather than 5 seconds. See Exhibit K at 42. In addition, the
last tasering occurred around 18:30 on the arrest tape. Even atfer 18:30, the last of the taser
deployments, it took almost five minutes to convince Boya to cooperate with officers’ requests
that he stand up. This isn’t evidence of “continuous tasering.” The five minutes after the last
tasering is evidence of officers’ efforts to de-escalate the situation because they wanted to
minimize the tasering.

In short, this lengthy “part V.” details how the factual arguments asserted by the plaintiff

do not accurately characterize the actual record. Even if plaintiff had properly represented the

Reply to Opposition to Summary Judgment

Olson v. Hooper Bay, Case No. 4BE-07-26 CI Page 31 of 35

Exc.238




Angstman Law Office
ATTORNEYS AT LAW
PO BOX 585
JETHEL, ALASKA
39559
{307) 543-2972

facts, none of the nine reasons plaintiffs give for opposing qualified immunity gave the Hooper
Bay officers “clear notice” that their use of a taser was improper.

D.  The Officers Acted Reasonably in Deplaying their Tasers under the
Objective Reasonableness Standard

As detailed in Defendants’ Memorandum, a reasonable officer under the circumstances
would have believed the use of tasers were lawful and not excessive. To summarize:
The officers were instructed under General Order 2-6 that the tésa' would not
“harm the human body” or “cause injury.” This training was confirmed when
Boya yelled out: “Is that all you got, bitch? Feels like a vibrator!”
Boya was putting up a “substantial physical struggle” evidenced by the fact that
two officers could not restrain or control Boya on a slippery floor. Boya admits
on the arrest tape on his way to the police station that he was “fighting” and
“resisting ”
Boya succeeded in kicking the officers, either in the chest, knee or thigh, causing
them pain.
When the officers tried to lift Boya up by the arm, Boya bit at Officer Simon
more than once, as confirmed on the arrest tape when Boya was told to “stop
trying to bite”
When Officer Oaks tried to unwrap Boya’s legs from around the pole, Boya
kicked Oaks in the knee and Jeg, causing Oaks’ pain.

Officer Joseph deployed his taser when he saw Boya move aggressively toward

Oaks who had fallen on the ground.
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Officer Simon deployed his taser after verbal commands failed and he was kicked

in the chest and left thigh by Boya.

8 - When Joseph joined the struggle with Simons and Oaks to subdue Boya, Joseph
B was kicked in the chest by Boya, consistent with Boya posing a challenge to all
- ‘ three officers. Joseph deployed his taser after getting kicked in the chest by

fr Boya.

” - Boya smelled and acted like a person who was intoxicated. Listening to the

‘ arrest tape, Boya is difficult to reason with, his anger is hard to predict, he was
H actively struggling with officers, and his escalation is sudden and erratic. Itisa

fast-evolving, dangerous situation, occurring on a slippery floor, close to stairs
and with officers who have fallen to the ground alongside Boya.
‘posed a sufficient risk of kicking that he took up much of Joseph’s

attention and efforts at the same time Boya was fighting with Simon and Oaks.

Despite multiple tasering, it took roughly 5 minutes, 7 seconds to subdue Boya

so that he stopped kicking. See Exhibit A at 23:37 through 18:30. That is a long

o

L

and dangerous time frame for officers to be grappling with a suspect on a slippery

floor and at the top of stairs.

T—

These facts and others set forth in defendants’ Memorandum evidence that the arresting

2

L officers had no “‘clear notice™ that their conduct was “unlawful” or “excessive.”
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case with Sheldon. In Sheldon, far greater force than a taser was used when a suspect failed to
release his grip on some handlebars so that he could be taken into custody. The Alaska Supreme
Court did oot think the Sheldon’s officer’s conduct was “shocking” or objectively “unlawful”
even when the escalating use of force resulted in Sheldon’s death. The Alaska Supreme Court
was “cognizant of the reality that officers must often make quick judgments which might have
unanticipated consequences” and advised courts to “resist the urge to second guess those
actions when things turn out badly.” Plaintiff tries to make hay over the fact there were
numerous taser deployments in this case. But the reality is that the officers were in the midst of
a substantial struggle with Olson. The taser deployments were not having their expected effect
because Olson was struggling. The officers were in a dangerous position since they’d lost
control of the situation by falling onto the floor alongside Olson. Olson succeeded in kicking all
three officers either in the chest or the knee or the leg. If the tasers hadn’t been deployed the
injuries could have been greater like a kick in the face, one of Boya’s bites, or additional kicks to
the officers’ bodies. The use of the taser was an objectively reasonable response to Boya’s

active resistance and kicking and biting at officers.

Defendants ask the Court to grant summary judgment on the grounds of qualified

immunity.
DATED this |H_day of July, 2008, at Bethel, Alaska.
ANGSTMAN LAW OFFICE
Artorneys for Defendant Officers
Byr%ﬁﬂu/_%_g_:
Myron Angstman
Bar No. 7410057
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, IN THE SUPERIOR COURT FOR THE STATE OF ALASKA

FOURTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT AT BRETHEL

THCMAS J. OLSON, }

Plaintiff, }

CITY OF HOOPER BAY, )
OFFICER DIMITRI OAKS, )
OFFICER CHARLES SIMON and )

OFFICER NATHAN JOSEPH, )

Defendants. )

No. 4BE-07-00026 CI

VIDEOTAPED DEPOSITION OF CHARLES SIMON

Pages 2 through 62, inclusive
April 23, 2008

Hooper Bay, Alaska

R e

T

P Exhibit K j

TRANSCRIPTION SUPPORT SERVICES April 23, 2008
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Olson v, Hooper Bay

Page 2
IN THE SUPERIOR COURT FOR THE STATE OF ALASKA | 1 INDEX
FOURTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT AT BETHEL 2
3 THOMAS J. OLSON, ) 3
4 ) 4 EXAMINATION BY: PAGE(s) )
5 Plainaff, ) 5 f
H 3 ) 6 Mr. Brown 6,58
! v. ) 7
’ 8 ) 8 Mr. Widmer 52
!} 9 CITY OF HOOPER BAY., ) 9
4 10 OFFICER DIMITRI OAKS, 10 Mr. Ingaldson 56
11 OFFICER CHARLES SIMON and ) 11
q 12 OFFICER NATHAN JOSEPH, ) 12 EXHIBITS: IDENTIFIED
| :: 13 ) 13
14 Defendants. ) 14 FOR THE PLAINT 1FF:
- s ———) 15
I] 16 16 D - Use of Force Form 36
[ 17 No. 4BE-07-00026 CI 17
18 18 E - Photographs 47
f 193 VIDEOTAPED DEPOSITION OF CHARLES SIMON 19
(‘ 20 20 FOR THE DEFENDANTS:
21 1aken on behalf of the Plaintff, pursuant to notice, at the 21
) 22 Sea Lion Corporation Boardroom, Hooper Bay, Alaska, before 22 I - Use of Force Report 35
! 23 SeanE. Brown, 2 Notary Public for the State of Alaska. 23
24 24
25 25
Page 3 Page 5§
1 APPEARANCES 1 HoopaBay,Alaska.ApriIZJ.ZOOS
2 2 :
3 For the Plaintiff 3 MR. BROWN: All right. Here you are. Here, 30 just
g 4 SEAN E. BROWN 4 kind of keeping your pitcher over there. Just rajse that up a
s POWER & BROWN, LLC 5 little bit more maybe,
f 6 Box 1809 6 MR. SIMON: That's a nice little camera,
i 7 Bethel, Alaska 99559 7 MR. BROWN: You know, after we got it though, they
4 8 {907) 5434700 8 came out with a whole digital thing so we need to get, you
3 9 know....
} 10 For the Defendants: 10 MR. SIMON: Oh, that's not digital?
11 11 MR. BROWN: Ifs not so.. __
12 MATTHEW WIDMER 12 MR. SIMON: Digital's nice.
- 13 ANGSTMAN LAW OFFICE 13 MR. BROWN: Technology updated the day after. Thank
14 Box 585 14 you. Butwe can send that into Anchorage and they turn intg
15 Bethel, Alaska 99559 15 digital right dway 5o thar's what we do. Aj) nght. We aj}
1s 1907) 543-297?2 -6 know who each other 15 here by now. We've done severai
17 17 introductions but [ stifl have to swear you in and, just for
18 WILLIAM H. INGAI DSON 13 the recording, | am 4 otary for the State of Alaska and if
19 INGALDSON, MAASSEN & FITZGERALD, PC | 19 You could, ruise your right hand and take an oath.
20 413 West Third Avenue 240 {Oath admunistered)
21 Anchorage, Alaska 9950 21 MR. SIMON: Yes.
2 (907) 258-8750 22 MR. BROWN: Okay. Thank you And I'm Sean Brown,
23 23 plainufPs altorney. We want to introduce or.._. v
] 24 24 MR WIDMER: My name is Matthew Widmer. I work with |-
Angstman Law Office. | represent Sergeant Simon as well as ;

25

2 (Pages 2 to s5)
April 23, 2008
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Oﬁ. [ dont rcmember thc exact way it was put but it was

Page 6 Page 8
Officer Oaks and Sergeant Joseph who are also parties in this 1 — ane of the things was wrong -- wrong — wrongful use
case. 2 of force.
3 MR. INGALDSON: Bill Ingakison representing the City | 3 Q But — and they were accusing you of using wrongful use
4 of Hooper Bay and Chief Hoelscher is also here. 4 of force?
5 MR. BROWN: And I guess | should also note for the 5 A Yes.
6 record that Sergeant Joseph is also present at this 6 Q Okay. And who was that against?
7 deposition. 7 A James Smith,
8 MR. SIMON: And Donna Fulkrton. 8 Q And was James Smith handcufYed at the time the wrongﬁ.d ¢
9 E use of force was used?
1 CHARLES SIMON 10 MR. WIDMER: Objection, it's foundation and it's a
11 called as a witness herein on behalf of the 11 crucial statement, assurnes that force was actually applied
12 Plaintiff, having been duly swom upon oath 12 wrongfully and all those other little things. You can answer
13 by Mr. Brown, Notary Public, was examined 13 the question.
14 and testified as follows: 14 A Yes.
15 15 Q Okay. And how long have you been on the police force?
16 EXAMINATION 16 A Little over eight years.
17 BY MR. BROWN: 17 Q And do you recall the date of that in — of the incident
18 Q Could you please give your address, piease? ig regarding Mr. Smith? When did that occur?
19 A P.O.Box , Hooper Bay, Alaska 99614. 19 A Thatd be a few years ago.
20 Q Allright. And how long have youlived here in Hooper 20 Q Okay. So before this occurred?
21 Bay? 21 A Yeah
22 A Since 1950. 22 Q And when I'm talking about this, 'm talking about before
23 Q Allright. And what's your job or occupation here? 23 Mr. Olson was tasered.
24 A Police officer. 24 A Yes.
25 Q How many hours a week do you work? 25 Q Okay. So — and that plaintiffs pame was James Smith,
Page 7 Page 9 ¥
1 A Atleast 40. 1 is that nght?
2 Q Okay. Sometimes more? 2 A Yes. :
3 A Yeah. : 3 Q And you may not recall this but you may, case number 4BE-
4 Q Allright. Okay. Sol just want to go over a few things 4 06-364 Civil, does that sound correct? Pretty much so? i
5 with you. Have you ever given a deposition before? 5 You may not have any memory. Is that right?
6 A Yeah € A Idon'tknow. [ don't remember the case number.
7 Q And what kind of case was that? 7 Q Oh,okay. So this is the second lawsuit that you've had
8 A Asincivil, criminal? 8 against you?
9 Q Let'sstart — well, yeah, have youcver given a 9 A [ldon't knmow. I'm not quite sure of the number.
10 deposition in a criminal case before? 10 Q So at least two?
11 A I'mnot quite sure if it was called 1 deposition or not. 11 A That one and this one, yeah.
12 Q It was acriminal case? 12 Q Okay. And afer that case - did you review the standard
13 A Noe 13 for tasering afier that case? I'm sorry, after you were
14 Q Okay. Soin a cnminal case, you don't think you've 14 - let's start that question -- Il start that question.
15 given a deposition before? 15 After you were sued in that case, did you go back and
16 A No. 16 review the tasering policy?
17 Q Okay. Then let's go onto acivil case. IHaveyougiven |17 A Yeuh
18 a deposstion in a civil case before? 18 Q And when you reviewed that tascring policy, what did it H
13 A Yes L9 say about administening the tasers when he was i
20 Q And what type of case was that? 20 handcuffed? !
21 A Theonly way I can think of to answer 1t is civil. 21 A Oh, [ don't remember it word for word or exactly how it's |
22 Q Okay. And were you a party or a defendant in that case? | 22 worded. [s that okay? H
23 A Defendant. 23 Q) Sure, just what you rcmember. i
4 (Q Okay. And what were you accused of in that case? 24 A A person who is handcuffed can't be tased unless there's .
A 25 i

a possibility of them hurting themselves or somebody

T
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Page 1¢ Page 124
else, causing mjury, harm or even death, 1 question? 1
Q  And what level of injury? 2 Q Would you say that — regarding your knowledge of taser
3 A ldon'tknow. I don't remember the exact level of injury 3 use, would you rate yourself as having a poor level of
4 but if they were capabie of hurting someone bed enough, 4 knowledge?
S then you could use 1 taser. 5 A No.
n 6 Q Bad enough, what docs that mean? . 6 Q Agoodlevel of knowledge or a very good level of
7 A Ifthey could cause bodily harm bad enough to cause 7 knowledge?
. 8 permanent injury or prolonged injury, that's - that's 8 MR. INGALDSON: Object to the form.
J S what it means 9 A Very good.
e 10 Q Oh. Now, in the Smith case, he grabbed your scrotum, is | 10 Q Soa very good level of knowiedge regarding the legal use §
. 11 that right? 11 of a taser, is that correct? :
A
o 12 A Yes. 12 A Yes.
i 13 Q Not your testicle but yous scrotum, is that right? 13 Q And you have been an officer for how long?
14 A Yes 14 A Eight years,
- 15 Q Sodm‘sthetypeofmjmyyouantalkingabomwben 15 Q Soisyourpositionthentha(ifapersonistesisn‘ng
” 16 you think you have authority to taser someone, i3 that 16 arrest, kicking and screaming, resisting to go in
17 right? 17 somewhere, that a taser can be used?
0 18 A Thats.... 18 A That would depend on the circumstances.
| ] 19 MR. INGALDSON: Object to the form. 19 Q Okay. What about when — were you an officer in 19947
(4 20 Q Sowhcnapcrsongmbeymn‘scmtmn,youcnnukmnistcra 20 A No.
21 taser on them, is that correct? 21 Q Oh,lthougmyousaidyou‘vebecnoneforcig,hlyears.
| 3: 22 A Mwouldbcomof!heinstancminwhich~yeah. 22 Since 2004, I'm sorry. Were you an officer in 20047
| 23 Q Evenif they were handcuffed? 23 A Yeah.
24 A Yes. 24 Q Ifyouwmmotﬁcerandyouwcmtoabotclandyou
(4 25 Q Andsocvcnifapersonishandcu.ffcdandonmeﬂoor 25 sawanirrtoxicatedmanrolliggiumdindwpaddnglot
: Page 11 Page 13
1 kicking, you can also administer a taser, 1 and crying, what would be your first action?
2 A Yes 2 A I'dshout (indiscernible). ’
E 3 Q Do you think since you were sued in the Smith case that 3 Q Andif you were — the man was yelling and screaming
4 you became very aware of the policy involving what was 4 (indiscernible) officers with officers, what would your
5 legal to do when using a taser? 5 response be?
! ' 6 A Excuse me? § A I'd(indiscernibie).
l: 7 Q Do you believe as a result of being sued in the Smith 7 Q Andif you had o drag the person and put them into the
8 case -- okay. You were sued in the Smith case, right? 8 patrol car, they were st} screaming, what would you do
3 A Okay. 9 at that point? ‘
’ 10 Q Okay? And then you testified earier after you were 10 MR. INGALDSON: Object to the form. X
’ 11 sued, you went back and you reviewed the policy regarding { 11 A Throw them in the patrol car, just let them yell and '
12 the taser administration, is that right? 12 scream. :
¢ 13 A Yes. 13 Q And then you get to the hospital because you have to take fi
! 12 Q Do you believe that that helped refresh your memory so 14 him to the hospital because he's so drunk..... ;
15 that you knew bettcr how to legally use a tascr? 15 A Yeah
16 A Ido -- had already known. 16 Q ... and he refuses to get out of the patrol car, refuses
L7 Q Soon ascale of one to 10, you feel that you're - you 17 to get out. What are you going to do?
l8 were already a 10 and you remained a 10 Aflerwards, is 18 A Okay. What was the purpose of taking hitm to the hospital
19 that right? 13 sgain?
20 Q  Tohave him checked 1o see how drunk he was.

20 A Regarding what?

21 Q Ycah, I'm not -- that was a bad question. I'll strike 21 A Iguess what [ - what [ would have done is I'dtry to

RS et o =

22 that. On a scale of one to 10 regarding your knowledge 22 keep him restrained as best as | could and if we could
23 of taser use, how do you rate yourself? 23 see visually that he was okay, then we'd keep him
24 MR. INGALDSON: Object to the form. 24 restrained.

—

25 Q Let's say instead of going to the hospital, you wouid

A Is there a different way that you could phrase the
4 (Pages 10 to 13)
April 23, 2008
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Page 14 Page 16 [
have gone over to the jail and you 100k him to the Jail. L MR. BROWN: Yes.
He's yelling and screaming, kicking when the door is 2 MR. INGALDSON: Someone that's drunk and obuoxious b
3 open. What are you going to do? 3 while they were.....
1 ‘MR INGALDSON: Object to the form, ncomplete | 4 MR. BROWN: No, I'm just talking about this person
5 bypothetical. 5 has this background, is this the type of person you want
6 MR. BROWN: Okay. 6 working with you on the police force?
7 Q Youarrive at the jail with a prisoner in the back of the | 7 MR. INGALDSON: Object to the form.
8  car. Okay? You with me so far? 8 A What type of background? !}
9 A Yeah 9 Q Abackground where they were arrested for that type of ‘A
10 Q Allright. You go to get the prisoner out of the back of {10 action that I just described.
11 the car..... 11 A Okay. Could you clanfy the question a little bit more? N
12 A Okay. 12 Q Yes, ! just described to you an individual who had been &
13 Q ... and the prisoner is kicking, yclling, will not 13 yelling, screaming, roiling around in the parking lot,
14 listen to the officers, you warn him that he'll be 14 refusing to be arrested, staying in the patrol car, had ~
15 charged with another crime if he refuses to exit the 15 tobe dragged from the patrol car screaming, highly ”
16 vehicle and he continues to refuse. What are you going |16 intoxicated it says here, | described that type of person
17 to do? 17 toyou
18 A How - how drunk is this person? 18 A Okay. f]
19 Q Drunk enough to be yelling, screaming, refusing to get { 19 Q Okay? Now, is that type of person who refuses arrest and f
20 out of the car, your patrol car. 20 police authority the type of person you would want
21 A Okay. 21 working with you on your police force? { )
22 Q Whatare you going to do? 22 MR. INGALDSON: Object to the form. !
23 A If we —if [ could get him safely out of the patrol car, |23 A Is this person drunk or sober?
24 I'd just get him out and put him in a cell. 24 Q When they did these things, they were highly intoxicated.
25 Q_If the person was kicking at you, would it be okay to 25 A Olay. Iguessifthey were sober, they knew what they .
Page 15 Page 17
1 tass them in the patrol car? 1 were doing, they realized that they were a danger to
2 A Ifhe was going to hurt somebody, yes. 2 other people as weil as themselves and they absolutely l
3 Q Now, when a similar accident like this happened to you, 3 rejected authority, no.
4 they did — they just drug you out of the police car, is 4 Q Okay. Now, you yourself have been charged with
5 that right? 5 disorderly conduct in the past, is that correct? .
6 A Idon'tknow if they'd drug me out of the police car. 6 A Yeah. . J
7 Q Okay. I - I'm just looking at the affidavit here of a 7 Q And you yourself have refused officer commands and v
8 Officer Haymes and it says Simon again refusing. 8 officers have had to drag you out of patrol cars, is that
9 Officers had to drag him out of the patrol car. 9 comect? U
10 A Okay. 10 A Yes.
11 Q Okay. Docs that sound familiar or wers you..... 11 Q Andat that time, you were still a police officer on
12 A Yecah. 12 Hooper Bay Police Force, is that right? M
13 Q Were you in blackout then or do you have memory? 13 A Yes. ]
14 A Idon't remember that night. 14 Q And the City chose to keep you on board even afler that, [ '
15 Q Okay. If somcone acting like that the type of person 15 is that right? :
16 that you would want working beside you on the police 16 A Yes. 1
17 force? 17 Q Do you believe that when you were roiling in the parking ;
i8 A FExcuse me? 18 lot and crying or when you were screaming in the police i
13 ) Is someone that acts in the manner | just descnbed..... 13 car, when you were refusing to get out of the car, when " \
20 MR. WIDMER: Objection, relevance. 20 you had to be dragged from the police car, at any of ’
21 MR. INGALDSON: Object to the form. . 21 those times, should you have been tasered? i
22 .Q ... someone that you would want working with you on the | 22 MR. INGALDSON: Objection, foundation and form. !
23 police force? 23 Q Youcan still answer and, just to make it clear, what I'm : !
24 MR. INGALDSON: Are you talking about while they're | 24 referring to is the incident which occurred oo June 13th, [ J
working? 25 <004 at 0074 hours in Bethel, Alaska at the Long House.
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Page 18 Page 20
I'm referring to that incident in case there's others, 1A There was a whole bunch of trash on the floorand I got |
that I'm referring to that incident, 2 to the top — top of the steps and first two steps that |
3 MR. INGALDSON: He's already testified he doesn't 3 took in — into the house in — at the top — first two
4 remember it. 1 steps, | almost slipped. | had to keep my balance. Then
5 A If[ was one of the police officers arresting a person 5 I went to go help Officer Oaks with Boya. He started to
6 thathadthatdemcanorbmlhcywemn'tadangcrto 6 notbecomp--hcstanedtonotcooperatczndhislegs
7 themselves or anybody else that were uncooperative but 7 were up drawing a pole. 1 told him to stand up, to
f 8 not hurting anybody, no, I wouldn't -- [ wouldn't have 8 cooperate, to just come with us. He still didn't listen
;‘ 9 tasered them. 9 andlriedtohe!phimstandupbmhestm‘adbitin‘gus.
- 10 Q Aliright. Were you tased that night? 10 AfRer that first one, I tried to help him stand again but
- 11 A Idont remember. 11 he starts biting and kicking so when [ got kicked on the
e 12 MR. BROWN: Here's one. 12 chest, I slipped on a — I don't know exactly what |
( 13 Q Now, when you did your deposition on July 25th, 2007, at | 13 slipped on but the whole rest of the floor was slippery.

14 that time — [ don't know if you remember this or not but 14 I'slipped, fell on my back and I don't remember who —
do you remember testifying that you can't remember the 15 who fell — who slipped and feil first, either me or

15
l ] 16 exact policy regarding the taser dry stun — drive stun? 16 Oaks, but we both ended up on the floor. ,
17 Q Okay. Now, how did you get kicked on the chest?

17 A No.
18 Q Do you remember that exact policy? 18 A He tumed — he let go of the pole and turned and then

f ] 19 A Not word for word, no. 19 (indiscernible) bent over in the hold and stand.

! j 20 Q Okay. , 20 Q Maybe I misunderstood Oaks earlier. | thought he was on §
21 MR BROWN: Public record | worked hard to acquire |21 the bed when you got there.

i 22 yesterday. May have it. 22 A Yeah,lstanedtohelpOaksbringhimandhestartedto

' 23 MR. WIDMER: Okay. 23 not cooperate with us.

24 Q Didyou — okay. So we've heard from Officer Oaksand 1 | 24 Q Okay. So he stood up on the bed? [ mean, stood up by
25 just want to be sure that everyone's in agreement. Were 25 the bed or what?
Page 19

Page 21 :

A Yeah.

Q Okay. And then what happened?
A I was one of the three. A Okay. He stood up. We started walking. He started to
Q Okay. And just to be sure that we're clear on this, what not cooperate. He wraps his leg around — and then he

you onc of the ﬁmMuMn that arrived at the 1
2
3
4
'm - I'm shifting gears here now and 'm not talking 5 wraps his leg around the pole.
6
7
8

scene that night or not?

about Smith, 'm not talking about the incident that Q Okay. Now, Oaks said that he was sitting down when he
occurred to you, what I'm talking about here is the did that on the ground. Is that right?

incident regarding Mr. Olson. Okay? Are you with me on A Yeah

that? 9 Q And Oaks said that was after the fall, is that right?

i} 10 A Okay. 10 A 1don't remember that, first of all, if there was one.

: 11 Q Allright. And were you one of the three that evening? 11 Q Do you agree it would be difficult to wrap your legs

12 A Yes. 12 around the pole if you were standing up?

i 13 Q Okay. Allright. And tell me what happened when you 13 A [ don't know.

14 amived at the house. : 14 Q Could you wrap your legs around a pole if you were

15 A [ don't remember everything exactly but what happened was( 15 sianding up? !
16 I got called because Sergeant Joseph and Ouks needed help 116 A Idon't know. ?
17 and they needed help bringing prisoners over to the 17 Q Okay. Allright. So you don't remember how Thomas got 5
18 police department so | arrived there. When | got there, 18 on the floor? f
19 there was Olson and Boya and | had already been 19 A No. 1
2 handcuffed. There were kids in the house and I don't 20 Q  So when Oaks sard that you, him and ‘Thomas, ail three, |
remember how many but | think the oldest may have heen 21 fell together, that was incorrect, nght?

22 MR. WIDMER: Objection, that's a mischaracterization

22 four or five. )
23 Q What ime was this? 23 ofthe previous answer, !

o4 A It was in the carly moming hours. 24 Q You can still answer.
Q Okay. Goon. 25 A What was the question?

mmﬂmmn&wwp
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Page 22 Page 24}
Q Ouaks testified earlier today and you heard it — you were 1 A Iwas holding onto the arms,
here also — that you, Thomas and him, all three, fell on 2 Q Whichone?
3 the ground at the same time:. Do you agree with that? 3 A Idoo't remember,
4 A Idon'tremember, ‘ 4 Q Okay. Well, you moved your right hand. [ mean, maybe
5 Q Okay. Soyou don't remernber falling on the ground with | s you have a visual in your mind. Do — which arm do you
6 Oaks? 6 think you were holding?
7 A (No audible responss). 7 A don't remember.
8 Q And-okay. s that true? | mean, that's what you 8 Q Okay. And how was he walking?
9 said? 9 A hmm@ahwnﬂmymm
10 A Yeah 10 Q Now,howcmﬂdyoutellthatifyuuwcresmndingbeside
11 Q Alliright. Okay. But you o remember Thomas beingon |11 him?
12 the ground, is that right? 12 A We bad to help him walk.
13 A Yeah 13 Q How did you help him?
14 Q Do you ever remember Oaks falling at all? 14 A We held his arms.
15 A Yeah 15 Q Whicham? You already said you don't know?
16 Q Were the two of you on the: ground at the same time? 16 MR. INGALDSON: We have an objection. He's already
17 A [don'tknow. . 17 asked and answered — that's already been asked and answered.
18 Q So you fell or Thomas falls, Oaks fails, Do you remember| 18 Q  Which arm?
19 if they fell together? 19 MR WIDMER: Answer it again though,
20 A No. 20 A ldon't remember. )
21 Q They did not fall together cr you do not remember? 21 Q Oiay. Soyou have gone from being somewbere near him to §
22 A Idon'tremember. 22 now being on his side to now holding his arm and now :
23 Q Okay. But you femember “homas falling? 23 helping him walk, is that right? I mean, this kind of
24 A [ don't remember if he fell. 24 progression is where you're going here, right?
25 Q Okay. Do you remember Thomas being on the ground? | 25 MR. WIDMER: Objection as to form, Counsel seems to :
Page 23 Page 25 §
1 A Yes 1 suggest be's been changing his story and that, | don't think,
2 Q Did you have snow on your :hoes? 2 isapparanﬁ'omd)emswetsgivm.
3 A What? 3 Q Youcan still answer.
4 Q Did you have snow on your thoes? Was it snowing outside | 4 A Okay. What was that again? ;
5 that night? 5 Q Okay. You started off that you were somewhere near him. [
6 A Yeah, it was snowing, 6 Is that the first thing you told me?
7 Q Okay. Now, do you believe hat Thomas was just on the 7 MR. WIDMER: Objection, mischaracterization.
8 ground when you came in then? s that possible? 8 MR. INGALDSON: Join.
9 A No. 9 Q Did you tell me that you were somewhere near Thomas
10 Q Allright So bow did he get to the ground? That's what 10 Olson?
11 1 want to find out. 11 A Yes. :
12 A [don't emember. 12 Q Andwcwcrcn-yingtodisoovcrwhcreyouwm. Yousaid
13 Q Okay. Doyoumanberlﬁmwaﬂdngatall‘? 13 youwcresomcwhetencarhim.isthatﬁght?
14 A Yes. 14 A Yes
15 Q Okay. Andhow far did he wilk? 15 Q Now you're saying that you were walking on his side, is
16 A From the bed to near the phove. 16 that right?
17 Q And then what happencd? 17 A Yes.
18 A ldun'tmnanberbowhecnd:dupontheﬂoor. 18 Q About bow far did you walk?
19 Q Where were you when he was wallong? 13 A Amyouaskinghowmmystcps .....
20 A Onhisside. 20 Q Yes.
21 Q What do you mean ou his sc:? Which side, leftor right? |21 A did I take from the door to the bed?
22 A Idon't emember. 22 Q Yes.
23 Q Are you sure you were on his side? 23 A Or from the bed to where he....
24 A I'know | was near him. 24 Q How far did you walk before he was on the floor?
.Q So you may not have been on his side? 25 A Idon'tremcmberhowmmystcpsitwasbmitwasn‘tfar.
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Page 28 }

Page 26
Q  And did you handcuff him? 1 A When he was seated on the floor, I was standing oa his
A No. 2 left,
3 Q Who handcuffed him? 3 Q Okay. And was he seated facing the door, the steps at
4 A He was handcuffed when | ammived. 4 thetinr,orwaslmscated&dngthcbcdorwashe
5 Q Allnght. Did you push him 1o the floor? s seated facing the couch? Where was he seated?
6 A No. 6 A Idon't remember what part of fumniture he was facing but
7 Q Are you sure? 7 myy back was to the door. j
8 A Yes. 8 Q Okay. All right So your back was to the door and his
2 Q How can you be sure? 9 feet were around the pole.
10 A ﬂuconlymasonlwouldpushsonwonctothcﬂoorifmcy 10 A Yeah
11 were handcuffed is if they were trying to hurt me or 11 Q And was his back to you or were his feet toward you?
12 somebody elsc in the first place. 12 A He was facing.....
13 Q Okay. But regarding this specific incident, do you have 13 Q Okay.
14 any memory about whether you pushed him to the floor? 14 A T'm standing to his left, on his lcf side and he's
15 A No. 15 facing this way.
16 Q You don't have any memory? 16 Q Oh, this way? Toward the door or away from the door?
17 A No. 17 A The door is to his left. Yeah, [ know.
18 Q And you don't have any memory about which side yowwere| 18 Q  Soand Officer Joseph was behind him?
19 walking on, is that correct? 139 A Yes.
20 A Thatis correct. 20 Q And Officer Oaks was on the other side?
21 Q Andyoudm’thaveanynmmryabou(howhegotonmc 21 A Yes.
22 floor at all, is that comrect? 22 Q Sothrceofﬁccmwmamundhimat!battimc,isﬂm
23 A No. 23 right?
24 Q That's not correct? . 24 A Oaks and I were next to him.
25 A ldon't remember how he got on the floor. 25 Q Okay. Sowashcldch;nmrhisbwd?
Page 27 Page 29§
1 Q Okay. You do not remember how he gotonthe floorcven. | 1 A I don't remember if he kicked over his head but { know he
2 Okay. So afler you were walking with him, tell me the 2 turned to kick at me.
3 next thing you do remember. 3 Q Sohe let go of the pillar and turned to kick at you?
4 A P'mtrying to help him stand up, trying to teil him to 4 A Yes.
5 cooperate, not to go at us. 5 Q And at that time, his back would have been toward Oaks,
6 Q Okay. And what does he do? 6 is that right?
7 A He tries to bite and kick at me. 7 A Yes.
8 Q Okay. Now, his legs arc around a pole, is that night? 3 Q SoOaks could have grabbed him?
3 A Yes. 9 A He may have been able to.
10 Q And hcis seated on the floor? 10 Q Okay. Andismatwhcnyouﬁrsttaserhimordoyou
11 A Yes. 11 already taser him before this?
12 Q Okay. And you weren't really afraid he was going to bite 12 A 1 tasered him afterwards.
13 you, were you? 13 Q  Allnght. So what happens after that then? He tumns to
14 A He tried to and almost did. 14 kick at you.
1S Q  But were you really afraid he was gong to hite you? I5 A He tums to kick at me. | get kicked in the chest and 1
16 A Yes, 16 stand. | get kicked on the thigh again. | don't
17 0 Okay. Now, how is that? Where were you standing that 17 remember at what point he kicked Oaks but he kicked Oaks. ¥
18 you thought he was going to bite vou? 13 I guess as I'm standing, he wraps his legs around the i
19 A I was standing on his lef side. 19 pole again and [ drive stun him on the - [ don't
20 Q  Sonow you remember, 20 remember which shoulder it was, on the back but -- Just
21 MR. WIDMER: Objection. 21 on his back.
22 MR. INGALDSON: Object to the form. <2 ) Was that the first use of your taser?
43 Q  So now you remember where you were standing? 23 A Yes
24 QO Allright Now - okay. You understand you're under

24 MR, INGALDSON: Ubject to the form.

<

vath today, right, o tell the truth? You know what that

Q  You can still answer.
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Page 32F

that report and that was where the majority of that came
from,

Q Okay. So you did write this then?

A Yes

Q All right. Now, you understand that when you sign
something like this, you are under cath? Do you
understand that?

A Yes.

Q Okay. So when you wrote this, you mean to tell the
truth, ['m sure, is that right?

A Yes.

Q Okay. Allright. Paragraph six says I slipped on trash,
falling to the floor. Is that possible of what caused
you to fall to the floor?

A Yeah, I remember slipping.

Q Okay. But now you just testified that he kicked you and }
that kick caused you to fall.

MR. WIDMER: Objection.
Q Did you say that?
MR. WIDMER: Mischaracterization.

Page 30

means? 1

A Yes 2

3 Q Okay. And you remember signing a — do you remember| 3
4 signing an affidavit in this case? 14
5 A Yes S
6 Q And did you prepare that affidavit? 6
7 (Pause) 7
8 A Isitthe.. 8
9 Q [Idon't mean to confuse you. Dud you write that 9
10 affidavit? 10
11 A s it the civil affidavit or the criminal affidavit? 11
12 Q Thecivil. You won the civii ta this case. 12
13 A Yes 13
14 Q Youdid write that? 14
15 A s this the one that was sent to the court or the onc for 15
16 this civil case? 16
17 MR. INGAL.DSON: Why don't you show him the 17
18 affidavit? 18
19 Q Yeah,'mgladto. | here. Thisis your signature? 19
20 A (No audible response). 20
21 Q Okay Allright Do you remember — it looks like this | 21
22 was faxed to you — let me look here — maybe on the 11th | 22
23 of April. Do you remember seeing this? 23
24 A Yes 24
2S Q) Allright And is that signature? 25

' Page 31

A Yes. 1

2 Q And did you write this? 2
3 A Yes 3
4 Q So you wrote this. Okay. All right. Did you type it? 4
5 A No. 5
6 Q Allright. So nght after you wrote it, who did you send 6
7 it to to type it? 7
8 A It was faxed to — it was faxed to a lawyer's office. 8
9  Okay. And so this is - these are your words that you 9
10 actually wrote then? 10
11 MR. BROWN: And what he's reading right now is the | 11
' 12 affidavit of Charles Simon that was filed in support of the 12
13 motion for summary judgment in case number BE-07-26 C1.{ 13
14 Q Did you write this? | don't mean to trick you. 14
15 A Yes. 15
16 Q Okay. So you wrote it out — what'd, you write it out 16
17 and then you sent il to the attorney totype? Is that 17
18 what you id? ]
19 A [ didn't wntet out. 19
20 () Okay. What did you do? If Pmconfising you, justtell | 20

21 me. I'm not trying to trick you, I'mjust trying to 2

22 figure out where this atfidavit came fom. [t's nota 22
23 trick question. | mean, [ just — where did it come 23
24 from? It's no big deal, 1t's just..... 24
25

‘A I typed up a supplementary report for Sergeant Joseph as

Page 33 .

Q Maybe you didn't say that. Did the kick cause you to
fall or not in the chest?

A That was part of the reason ] fell. v

Q Okay. Now, in your supplemental report to Officer
Joseph, you said the kick on the chest didn't hurt.

A No, it didn't hurt.

Q Okay. And here you wind — you fall on the garbage.

A That was the other part of the reason.

Q What I want to get at here is every reason. [ wanted to
find out everything that went on. So when you testify, I
want to know everything if you can tell me everything,
please. Okay?

A Okay.

Q Allright. So when you say that he kicked you in the
chest and you felt to the tloor, you need to say he ]
kicked me in the chest, there was something on the floor, ‘,
the kick didn't hurt but [ fell. i

;
s
]
|

MR WIDMER: Objection, he does not - he has to
answer the questions that are asked.

MR. BROWN: [ want to find out, you know, if there's |/
something in there, if the kick didn't burt, [ would like to
know that.

(Q Did the kick to the chest hurt?
A No.
(). Okay. And was the reason you fell to the floor because
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[ Page 34 Page 36}

", of the trash? I A What?
A That was..... 2 Q Okay. When do you fill this form out? [1] strike the
3 MR. INGALDSON: Object to the form. 3 @mmqmmmnmhamkmwwﬁmnmeMm-
4 A That was part of the reason. 4 last two questions. Start with this one now. Sorry.
5 Q Okay. Did you put any other reason in this affidavit? 5 A Okay.
6 A Excuse me? 6 Q Whendo you fill this form out? And I'm referring to the
7 Q Did you put any other reason you fell in this affidavit 7 use of force form. Why did you complete that form?
8 besides the trash? ' 8 A Because [ had to use force other than verbal or presence.,
9 A You may have misread that. 1 mean, the — his kick, that 3 Q Andon this form, you are supposed to tell why the
10 was part of the reason | fell. 1 mean, | got knocked — 10 tactics were used, is that correct?
11 knockcdbackandtheuashwasdreotherreason. 11 A Yes.
' ’ 12 Q Inyour affidavit, it says that you and Dimitri slipped. 12 Q Okay. Did you do that?
i3 13 This is the affidavit supporting the police report. 13 A Yes
14 A Okay. 14 Q Andlhmcarememwnsthatitwasused,isthat
1 15 Q Yousee that? 15 correct? These are the reasons that force was used on
n 16 A  Yeah 16 this form, is that correct?
17 Q Okay. Then it seems a little bit later, you're talking 17 A Yes.
18 about the chest and things of that nature, Do you see 18 Q Allright. Il mark this defendants’ exhibit D. 'm
| i 19 that? ' 19 sorry, plaintiff's exhibit D,
; 20 A Yeah 20 MR. BROWN: Deposition, the plaintiff's deposition.
21 Q Okay. So, having refreshed your memory with the 21 Q Okay. Sonow I'm just going to read over what you wrote
3 22 affidavit that you produce to support the police report, 22 here. Okay? :
5 j 23 does this change your memory at all regarding how you and| 23 A Okay.
24 Dimitri got on the floor? 24 Q Allright. What techniques and tactics were used? Were
25 A _ldon't remember if Dimitri fell once or twice but [ know | 25 they effective? I first tried to use the handcuffs that
Page 35 Page 37
1 he fell. 1 were on him to escort him out of the house. This is when
2 Q Justtalking about you now..... 2 hetﬁedtokickatmea.ndbitemyha.nd. I then used two
! 3 A Okay. 3 two-second drive stuns to his back from nry Taser M-26.
4 Q ..does it change your memory about how you got to the 4 They didn't work. I then tried drive-stunning Thomas ]
‘ 5 floor now that you've reviewed the affidavit supporting 5 Jjust above his collarbone, three two-second deployments. '}
o 6 the police report and also the affidavit supporting the 6 Did Thomas have his shirt on? F
) 7 action, does that change your mind about how you got to 7 A [don't remember. -'
8 the floor? 8 Q He was still not compliant and was stil] combative. |
9 A No. 9 then tried drive-stunning him on the inner thigh, two
j 10 Q And in cither one of those, does it say you landed on 10 two-second deployments. At this point, he started
11 your back? 11 kicking at us and I got kicked once more on the leg.
12 A No. 12 Sergeant Joseph had to deploy his taser. After a few
? 13 Q What did you write first, did you write the use of force 13 deployments of the current, Thomas finally became i
14 report first or the affidavit supporting the police 14 compliant. [ would have used pepper spray but there was |
15 report first? 15 a sewbom in the house. Is that a true and accurate :
16 A The supplement and the use of force, | - | don't 16 representation of what you wrote in there?
17 remember which I wrote first, 17 A Yes.
18 Q Okay. On the use of force. do yOu write in there 18 QDo you mention anywhere in this use of force report that
19 anywhere that you even fell to the floor? 13 you tell to the ground? !
20 MR. BROWN: And what I'm showing him now isthe use | 20 A No. f
21 offorce repor that 1s marked defendants’ exhibit 1. 21 Q Do you mention anywhere in this use of force report that }
22 A No. 22 a kick to the chest caused you to fall to the ground? \
23 Q So when you're talking about the use of force, this 1 23 A No. :
24 what you based your use of force upon, is that right, 24 !
this information right here? 25 JE
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24 you see that?

23 subject may feel dazed for several seconds or minutes, do

Page 38
(Tape two:) 1
Q When you — that when he tried - not your -- (pause) ~ | 2
3 all right. You're still under oath. We changed the 3
1 tape. You understand that? And restricted use of the 4
5 advanced taser, | believe that you know those five 5
6 reasons why it cannot be used. Do you agree with that? 6
7 A Yes. 7
8 Q Allnght And this has been marked exhibit B for the a
9 purpose of the deposition today and this document reads | 9
10 Common Effect of EMD. 10
11 A Okay. 11
12 Q What does EMD stand for? 12
13 A Electro-muscular disable. 13
14 Q Okay. Allright. And can youtell me what the common | 14
15 cffects are without reading the document? Youdid very |15
16 well before but you needed to see this document to know | 16
17 what the common cffects are. 17
18 A Yes,sir. 18
19 Q Okay. You want to take a - take a look and if you 15
20 could, read that. 20
21 A Okay. 21
22 Q Oh,can you -- okay. All right. The fifth item down, 22
23

24

Page 40}
i

(tape skips). I just want to be forthcoming on it.
MR. WIDMER: All right.

Q What's this?

A ldon't know. (Tape skips). What happened to me is |
don't exactly lose my balance but it feels like the world
was kind of maybe just a little bit maybe vibrating so
much.

Q Okay. So kind of like being dizzy, is that what -
that ....

A Something like that.

Q 1don't want to put words in your mouth but is that
similar to what you're talking about?

A Yeah

Q Now, on your use of force report, you talk about the
seven times that you deployed the taser and — but you do
not mention about Thomas being on the floor at any of
those times. Do you recall if he was on the floor at all
or do you recall if he was on the floor when you deployed
the first one, the second one, the third one, the fourth
one, fifth, etcetera? Do you recall?

A The first — I know for sure on the — on the first —
first two drive stuns and the last two, he was on the
floor.

Q Okay. What about the three in between?

e N IR TRty s &t 1

25 A Yes. 25 A 1don't remember.
Page 39 Page 41

1 Q All ight. What does that mean (0 you? 1 Q Allright Now, your attomcys in their motions say at

2 A Dazed orjust — [ don't know the dictionary definition 2 about five minutes past from -- I want to say what he

3 but to me it's like in the (indiscernible) and after 3 (tape skips) reports say. You saw five minutes aft —

4 that, it's like (indiscemible) and I've also been 4 during this time period of the stunning? Does that sound

5 knocked unconscious a couple times. After a short -- 5 about accurate to you or how much time do you think?

6 after a short while, I'd wake up and 1 don't know exactly 6 A [don't know.

7 what's going on or what happened. That isn'texactly how | 7 Q Do you think more time than that or less time than that?

8 to do that but that — [ think this is one of the 8 A [don't know.

9 definitions of dazed. 9 Q And if you know that someone is going to feel dazed for
10 MR. BROWN: And just for purposes that — so [ won't | 10 several minutes, you're supposed to give them time to
11 say (tape skips) and when you get tosay these are (tape 11 recoup between one stun and another stun or you just
L2 skips), if you want to watch, what happened earfier was the 12 don't let them do that?
13 video ran out of time (tape skips) and that — { wanted to 13 A ARerthe initial stun, if -- if they're (tape skips)
14 stipulate that what's recorded is recorded and if it's not 14 need without using force, then we use the voice.
15 recorded, it's not rccording, you guys will have to watch it 15 Q llas anyone cver told you that after someonc is tased, y
16 and just so that you guys know, whathe said is not on there 16 that they (tape skips) to immediately respond io y
17 and ] won't say it again. s that — cveryone stipulate to 17 commands? r
18 that, what's on there is on there or you want to watch it 18 A He wasn't - (tape skips) respond to that, ;
19 first? 19 Q Has anyone ever told you that? Was that in any part of |
20 MR. WIDMER: [ think we can -- well, what's on there | 20 your traimng? [
21 1sonthere. There's not much we cando now but we can break [ 21 A | don't remember.
22 nght now to revicw. 22 )  And have you ever becn given any training about tasing
23 MR. BROWN: Okay. 23 someone or drive stunning them on their neck?
24 MR. WIDMER: (Tape skips) made a tape. 24 A Don't know.

{25 Q And vertigo, you said is being like being dizzy. Did you

t MR. BROWN: All right. Youll do that? We can
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Page 42 Page 44
remember that? 1 Q Evenif her hands were tied behind her back?
A (No audible response). 2 A No.
3 Q Okzy.Whm--itwou.ldbediﬂiaﬂttosmndupifyou 3 Q Andevenif she was on the ground?
4 had vertigo, isn't that correct? 1 A That (tape skips).
3 5 A Yes 5 Q Yeah Do you think that then he'd be authonized (tape
. 6 Q Soaman that's been tased seven times just by you and 6 skips) it should be legal, you respond to a call and you
7 more by Officer Joseph, it would be reasonable — {tape 7 believe before the — for someone to use four stuns of
f 8 skips) reasonable? 8 the taser which can cause the injuries that you
! 9 A Yeah 9 photographed here... .
‘ 10 Q It would be reasonable to believe that — [ mean, itdbe | 10 MR. WIDMER: Objection. !
11 hard to stand up after all that, do you (tape skips)? 11 Q Didyou photograph ~ are these your photographs? (Tape §
" ‘ 12 A It may be. 12 skips) we'll stipulate (tape skips). Do you think that
o 13 Q It would be reasonable to believe that he may feel dazed | 13 someone that is — has their hands restrained behind
1a tor several seconds or minutes after maybe at least seven | 14 their back down on the floor, trying to bite someone,
| 15 discharges and maybe more. [s that reasonable? 15 trying to kick someone should receive those type of
f } 16 A Yes, that's reasonable. 16 injuries as a result?
) 17 Q The subject may feel dazed for several minutes. 17 A Idon'tknow. And if it was the best way to stop them
18 A And should be (tape skips). 18 compared to other means and if it was the best way they
f i 13 Q Now, you deployed the first two -- and [ want to oumber | 19 could find, yes.
[ 20 this but until we're putting — you deployed the first 20 Q Do you remember taking these photographs or are these
21 two when he tried to kick and bite at your hand, then you {21 photographs that you took? These were taken at the
i 22 used two two-second drive stuns, correct? 22 police force, the police office is my understanding and [
: 23 A Yes. 23 don't know if you took them or if Officer Joseph did. Do
’ 24 Q Now, what if you were just out — you know, what if you |24  you remember taking the 13 photographs in front of you?
25 and I got into a fight..... 25_A _Pknow for sure that Sergeant Joseph took them because [ §
Page 43 ~ Page 45}
1 A Okay. 1 for sure couldn't take them. | don't remember who took
2 Q Allnght? And (tape skips) if I tried to bite and kick 2 all of them.
! 3 you, then you can sit, | deserve to be tasered? 3 Q Do youremember taking any of them?
4 A Yes. 4 A No.
5 Q Okay. Andiflkicked you on your leg, would | deserve 5 Q Inyour investigation at the time, did you find that you
; 6 ta be tascred? 6 get the most accurate statement closer to the date of the
! J 7 A Okay. When we say deserve, can you make a stop that's a 7 cnime or months later?
8 counter-punch? 8 A Excuse me?
9 Q Well.. 9 Q When you are investigating a crime, do you find that you
j 10 A Yeah 10 get the most accurate statement when it's right close to
11 Q ....do you think you would be authorized, you think it 11 the crime or months later?
12 would be legal for you fo use that type of force against 12 A Probably close.
13 me if | had kicked you on your leg? 13 Q You were using the force of the gun right close, is that
14 A Yes. 14 correct?
15 Q Mm hmm. Soif you were investigating a crime and someone | 15 A Yecs.
16 said well, Molly tried to kick me and then she tried to 16 0 And the affidavit for -- in this case was done months ;
17 bite me and the husband says | just took out — you know, 17 later, is that correct?
19 L took this taser out and | was —- fired it in her arm. 19 A Yes. 4
i3 Think Molly should be arrested in that incident? 13 Q But your memory reflected use of force is a more accurate |
20 A Yes. 20 reflection perhaps than this? '
21 Q  So you don't think that the amount of force that someone 21 A it could be.
22 used against her in that example 1 just gave would he 220 Allnght Justasecond. Let's just kind of (tape
23 excessive at all? 23 skips). Officer Joseph stated in his police report that
24 A No. 24 it was really hot inside. Do you remember how hot it was

._ MR. WIDMER: Objection. 25 inside?
12 (Pages 42 to 45)
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Page 46 Page 48 ;
A No. 1 1. This is a photograph of what ~ Thomas Olson's neck !
Q So your attorneys did not write this for you? [s that 2 but, just in general, you can just say Thomas — not {

3 who did it? 3 Thomas but, in general, is this the type of mark that ;

4 A (No audible response). 1 would be consistent with a drive stun mark or is this g

5 Q (Tape skips) data dunng this day so your attorneys 5 more consistent with when prongs actually void? { r.

6 didn't write this for you? 6 MR. INGALDSON: Objection, foundation. h L

7 A They got information from me and that was (tape skips). | 7 A With these I can't tell.

8 Q Olkay. Sothey wrote it for you? 1 mean, that's - it's 8 Q Okay. Are you familiar with the type of marks that a e

9 fine if they did, I'm just asking you a question. 9 drive stun on a taser make? -
10 A Yes. 10 A Yes.

11 Q Did you ever actually deploy the taser or was it always 11 Q Okay. And I see you have your taser with you today. Are §} o
12 just a drive stun with you? 12 you - can you show us where the prongs are on that
13 A In this case, it was the drive stun. 13 taser? [f you were going to drive stun someone, show me
14 Q Now, you were traincd that the subject may feel dazed for | 14 your taser and let's see — you know, just show me where s
15 several seconds or minutes, is that correct? 15 the (tape skips) on the drive stuns are. Show us what [ ,
16 A Yes. 16 you mean by that. I
17 Now, in your affidavit, you said that you were trained 17 A Demonstrate?
18 that it would affect them just a few seconds. That's not 18 Q Id rather not be demonstrated on. Maybe Mr. Widmer {"
19 what you were trained though, is it? [sn*t that (tape 19 would like that though but if you could show - if you f
20 skips)? And we're in — refer to paragraph 11 of the 20 could take out your taser and just indicate to me where
21 affidavit, | was trained that the taser wouldn't cause 21 the drive stun prongs are?
22 injury or have an effect more than a few seconds but that 22 A Okay. Here's.....
23 wasn't what you were trained, was it? 23 Q Olkay. Soif someone is drive stunned, the current runs
24 A That wasn't the only thing [ was trained. 24 between those two prongs, is that correct?
25 Q But what you were trained with what? 25 A Yes, between these two little points.

Page 47 Page 49

1 A Standard. 1 @ Okay. So it would be knowledgeabie or it'd be reasonable

2 Q And how many seconds or minutes? 2 to think that a person drive stunned would have marks '

3 A Several. 3 close together rather than far apart? Is that 8

4 Q You ~ by now they probably all say hindsight's 20/20? 4 reasonable?

5 You heard that said? Well, right now, do you think that S A Yeah. No, close together. ;

6 maybe you overdid it a little bit with the force? 6 Q Okay. All right. When..... f

7 A No. 7 MR. INGALDSON: He can sit down if you like. 4

8 Q Notatall? 8 MR. BROWN: He can sit. Thanks.

9 A No. 9 Q Now, you have admitted here in the use of force report ‘ j
10 Q No? And you say that (tape skips) on May 2nd and I want| 10 (tape skips) that you drive stunned Thomas on the inner :
11 you to look at these — or those. May 2nd, 2007, Just 11 thigh, is that right?

12 take your time, look through those. Take as muchtimeas |12 A Yes. ‘

13 you would need. There's one, two, three, four, five, 13 Q Now, there's a photo of his inner thigh which show drive .

14 six, seven, eight pages of them. Take as much time as 14 stun marks. Is that correct? ! ;

15 you need to look through those and when you're done, let | 15 A Yes. :

16 me know. 16 MR. WIDMER: Obhjection. ;

17 (Pause) 17 Q Do yousee drive - do you see (tape skips) if someone’s |

18 A Okay. I'mdone. 19 in a (tape skips)? :

19 Q Okay. I'm going to mark these deposition exhibit E. | 19 A Yes. i

20 know we're trying to be (tape skips). Okay. One -- 20 Q Okay. And Jo you -- that's all I have. (

21 okay. Look on page E-1. [s it the type of mark that's 21 MR. INGALDSON: Object to the (tape skips).

22 made by the drive stun because there's two prongs that 22 Q Tell me what you see there.

23 (1ape skips) the person? 23 A Two little marks. : ’

24 MR. INGA1 .PSON: Objection, foundation. 24 Q Isitreasonable to believe those had been caused by a \ ,
‘(') I'm looking at the upper left-hand comer of E - page E- | 25 taser?

13 (Pages 46 to 49)
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Page 50

MR. INGALDSON: Foundation, 1
A [ don't know, 2
3. Q Smmnc~ymdon'tknowif(halcouldhavebeenposs- 3
4 you don't know if it's reasonable to believe that could 4
5 have been caused by a taser? 5
6. A [don'tlnow. 6
7 7
8 8

i’]
i

Q If someone was kicking at you on your shin or your
legs.....

f} 9 A (Indiscemible). 9
i 10 Q Butif they were kicking, how are you going tobe ableto | 10
; 11 make that connection (tape skips)? 11
! 12 A Idon't remember how (tape skips) legs but | (tape skips) |12
¥ 13 side of him. 13
14 Q That would have been difficult if his legs were kicking 14

! 15 back and forth, moving, do you agree? 15
% } 16 A Ifhe was doing that at the time, yes. 16
17 Q Now, you said that you drive stunned his back. Is that 17

18 what you said? 18

! } 19 A Yeah 19
' 20 Q Sonow, if he was kicking at you when you were behind | 20

21 him, there was no chance you were going to be kicked 21
1 22 (tape skips)? 22
23 A Sayitagain? 23

24 Q Explain that. 24

Page 52

A That's what 'm taiking about.
Q Okay. Allright. If you can think of anything | missed,
let me know. I don't have any more questions for you

EXAMINATION

BY MR. WIDMER:

Q I'want to reference here the 44-A where I (tape skips)
what has been marked (tape skips) exhibit D to the
deposition. Some questions have been asked to you,
Scrgeant Simon, about where in that second paragraph, the [
admission of that (tape skips) Mr. Olson was seated ;
was sitting at. Do you rernember those questions?

A Yeah.

Q And you — your response was that (tape skips) that he
was sitting down, correct?

A Yes

Q What information source to go into that box? Is there
anything on that form that you know that made you put it
there (ph)?

A Tthink it's (tape skips).

Q Okay. So would you consider the position of Mr. Olson to §
be a technique or a tactic? ‘

A No.
Q Okay. Is it a fair statement to say that there are a

25 A 1 guess how much time you (tape skips). 25 number of things that happened that night some — some
Page 51 Page 53 §
1 Q You think maybe you could have strained him while you| 1 kinds of situation does not make it into that use of
‘ 2 were behind him? 2 force report, is that an accurate statement?
g 3 A I may have been able to. 3 A Yes
4 Q Okay. But youdidn't try? 4 Q Sometimes it docsn't say you had a uniform on or that you
5 A Yes, Idid. 5 were carrying certain items of equipment. Is that
,' 6 Q Oh, where did you say that? 6 accurate? Does anyone — the use of force report form,
'4 7 It says (indiscernible) in this paragraph here. Oh, this 7 does it mention you were dressed in a uniform?
8 here, yeah, 8 A No. .
; 9 Okay. Well, you don't sce it down here where yousaid | 9 Q Isit fair to say that you were dressed in a uniform when
3 10 you pointed it to his back. It's not down there, is it? 10 you responxded to that?
4 11 No. 11 A (No audible response).

12 You just say that's the first thing you tried to do, is 12

A
Q
A
Q
14 A Yes.
Q
A
Q
A

Q  So there are a number of things that may have happened

i 13 that right? 13 that you may not have made it in that usc of force
14 report?

15 And tt just says you just tried it once, is that nght? 15 A Yes
16 I'm not sure what it says there. L6 O  And you created this report?
L7 Okay. What's Thomas Olson's criminal history priorto | 17 A Yes.
18 this date? 18 Q0 Why would you decide that some things should be reported,
19 (Tape skips). 13 some things should not? ;
29 () Okay. Any -- anything big pop out that you want to tell | 20 A they typed that into the report form. z‘
21 me about? If you don't know, you don't know. 1 just 21 Q Okay. One of the things that - one of the questions i
22 wonder if you know. 22 that were asked of you was that you couldn’t have been H
23 A Idon't believe {tape skips) my own conditions of release | 23 kicked while you were behind the shoulders. Do you
24 {tape skips). 24 remember those yuestions? ’

Q@ What about prior to this event? 25 A Yes. J
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Page 56

Page 54

Q And you responded that it was possible that you couldbe | 1 Q [ don' have anything else right now.
kicked or that response? MR. INGALDSON: Just two of them.

[

2
31 A Yes. 3
4 Q Okay. | wanted to ask you about the use of force you're 4 EXAMINATION
5 allowed to use. Are you only allowed to use — to deploy 5 BY MR. INGALDSON:
6 a taser if your own safety is threatened? 6§ Q Couple of questions. The — unfortunately, when the tape U
7 A Notjust my own safety. 7 ran out and we were asking some question or Mr, Brown was [
8 (Q What are some of the other reasons why you tase — why 8 asking some question but he did - remember, he went ; 1
9 you deploy a taser in a situation? 9 through and had you tell the reasons to ~ the
10 A Oh, safety of others. This does include the person (tape | 10 restrictions on use of the taser and he asked you — sort )
11 skips) enforcement. 11 of tested your memory on that? ‘n
12 (3 So while — when you were behind Mr, Olson, who was — {12 A Yeah :

13 was there anyone that was near Mr. Olson that could have |13 Q | think that when you went back on tape, he pointed out
14 been kicked? 14 that you were able to answer those questions and one of

15 Yes. 15 them dealt with if someone’s restrained such as Mr. Olson

A
16 Q And who would those people have been, if anyone? 16 in handcufTs, that he shouldn't be tased there unless
17 A Mr. Olson. 17 they're — [ think your words were engaged in actions
18 (Q Okay. And you had also mentioned that he was —orhe — | 18 that could cause injury to themselves or other persons '
19 at one point made a move, that he had tried to bite you, 19 that would be the deploying officers. Do you remember ! !
20 is that correct? 20 that? '
21 A Yes 21 A Yes.
22 Q You mentioned your training, that when you were tased, it { 22 Q  And that doesn't mean that they'd have to — that he has :
23 was hard for you, your response was made (ph). Remember | 23 to be causing injury that could result in your death or f
24 that? 24 serious injury, permanent injuries, any type of injurics
25 A Yes 25 (tape skips)?

Page 57§

Page 55

1 Q Could you cxplain a littlc more of what you mcan? 1 A Any - any injury.
2 A As the current was being administered or even before that 2 Q And in this case with Mr. Olson, I think you said he :
3 (tape skips) instructions and | was to follow — to 3 started kicking and he was wrapping his legs around the !
4 follow those instructions..... 4 poleand.....
5 Q Okay. 5 MR. BROWN: Objection, leading. .
6 A ... before, during and aficr. 6 Q Is that correct? ;
7 Q And another line of questions that was asked to you 7 A Yes . é
8 seemed to suggest that Mr. Olson would have been unable 8 Q Was he — did he ever give you -- before he was tased,
9 to stand up while he was being tased. Do you remember 3 did he ever do anything or give you any indication that
10 that line of questioning? 10 he would peacefuily comply with your orders to remove { J
11 A Yes. 11 himself from the house? )
12 Q And! think, specifically, reference was made to leeling 12 A Before that, I don't remernber whether ot not —~ whether
13 dazed or potential (ph) carlier. Do you remember that 13 or not he was completely cooperative. ’
14 line of questioning as well? 14 Q From the time that you all went down to the ground ot~} J
1S A Yes. 15 that he grabbed onto the pole, from then, {rom that time w!
16 () Ind you continue - you tased Mr. Olson the first ime, 16 on, from the time he started kicking you, did he ever —
17 nght? 17 kicking at you, did he ever do anything to indicate that E
18 A Right 18 he would just comply with you, peacefully comply with |
19 Q You tased him once and you stand up and (tape skips) come | 19 you? ‘
20 with you, 15 that correct? 20 A No.
21 A Yos. 21 () Have you ever been taught in your traning that if
22 (3 Okay. Did you continue to taser him because he didn't 22 someone resists the arrest, if someone kicks at you, if ;
23 stand up or did you continue to tase him becausc he was 23 someone bites at you, someone holds on the poles to keep [
24 trying to bite and kick you and any other officers? 24 trom being arrested that you should just let bim go? " }
’-A Because he was biting and kicking. 25 A No. ‘
15 (Pages 54 to 57) j
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Page 58 Page 60}
Q Didyou believe — let me, first of all, ask this 1 Q You were able to administer seven (indiscernible), is ]
3 question. thnMr.Olson~~Lhmwmaqumﬁonasked 2 that correct?
1 3 about whether or not Mr. Olson might have been dazed. | 3 A Yes,
4 When Mr. Olson said on the tape or we listened on the 4 Q Didywcvadeploythe—-l'ﬂmﬂ(hemclose(mpe
3 5 lape, when he made the comment is that all you've got, 5 skips) do you recall right now, did you ever deploy with
6 damn it, it feels like a vibrator, did you get the 6 the wires, the part of the taser?
’ 7 impression that he was just dazed when he said that? 7 A 'The probes?
‘ 8 A No. 8 Q The probes, yeah.
'; 9 Q And my last question, Sergeant Simon, is whenyouused | 9 A No. :
‘ 10 the taser on Mr. Olson, did you believe what you were 10 Q Okay. All right. Now, Mr. Oaks was saying earlier that §
{ 11 doing was lawful and proper? 11 iftwo-thctwopmbesdonotbothmkecontact,then :
‘ 1’ 12 A Yes,sir. 12 they short out, is that correct? Is that what happens?
3 13 Q That's all | have. 13 If only one probe makes contact with the person who's
14 MR. BROWN: And I have a few follow-up here. 14 being arrested, does the charge short out?
15 15 A It does make a circuit. [ don't know if it's called
' I 16 EXAMINATION 16 shorting out but.....
17 BY MR. BROWN: 17 Q Electrical charge, is that right?
‘ 18 Q Going back to the what's been marked as depositionD, |18 A There's an electrical charge circuit — circuiting.
f 1 19 deposition exhibit D here, Mr. Widmer brought your 19 Q Mr. Otson, is that right, something that would have
v 20 attention to this use of force form earlier and he only 20 caused Mr. Olson, for example, yell is that all you've
21 mentioned one section though which was what techniques | 21 got (tape skips) feels like a vibrator (tape skips)?
} 22 and tactics were used and why were they effective but, 22 1t's just a little charge, is that what you're saying or
; 23 actually, right above that, a section that he (tape 23 (tape skips) and I will start all over. It's getting
24 skips) says describe the incident. Isn't that what it 24 late. (Indiscernible). When only one probe, what
25 says, for you to describe the incident? - 25 happens?
Page 61

Page 59

1 A Yes 1 A It doesn't work.
. 2 Q Allright. And in either one of those sections, either 2 Q Allright. And Officer Joseph said that his first ones
! 3 the tactics that were used or in describe the incident, 3 . did not work. Do you have any knowledge of whether that
4 do you ever that you were on the ground? 4 worked or did not work? Do you yourself know? You may
5 A No. 5 not.
» } 6 Q Allright. And just amoment ago, you demonstrated for 6 A [ don't remember
i 7 us where the prongs were located on the taser? 7 Q Okay. Do you remember Thomas saying call and (tape §
8 A Yes. 8 skips) with the kids and I'll leave? H
; 9 Q Okay. Now, when you were holding that, that was just 9 A [don't remember.
/ j 10 night in your hand, right? 10 Q If you were investigating a crime scene and there were —
& 11 A Yes. 11 you came upon (tape skips) with burn marks on them and
12 Q You would have to come within very close proximity, very { 12 they said that they were (tape skips) investigating (tape
4 13 close to Mr. Olson in order to do that, is that right? 13 skips).
: 14 A Yes. 14 A I'dinvestigate further.
15 Q) Onetime you cven had it nght in between his legs and 15 Q Why?
L6 used it on his inner thigh, is that nght? 18 A They've spoken with one persan. ,
17 A Yes. 17 Q  And that one person teils you that their hands were 3
18 Q Another time used it right on his back and on his 18 behind their back and they were trying 1o bite and kick g
19 collarbone, is that right? 19 and they got those 14 hurn marks, what would (tape !
<0 A (No audible response). 20 wkips)? ;
21 Q  Just above the collarbone? 21 A Lsull don't know the whole story.
22 A Yes, 22 Q  Yousce that there could be a legal problem here? !
23 (Q Okay. So he was at least calm enough for you to get 23 MR. WIDMER: Objection, that calls for a legal i
24 close enough to him to administer that, is that nght? 24 conclusion. 1 .

25 A (Tape skips).

A | wouldn't <ay calm, no.

16 (Pages 58 to 61)
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Page 62 Page 64 j
Q Do you see a problem there that an investigator should
mvestigate and maybe file a report on?
3 Q Do you see a problem there that an investigator should
4 investigate and maybe file a report on?
5 A Yes. Something like that should be investigated.
6§ Q Why?
7 A Get the whole story.
8 Q Somcthing like that, what do you mean something like
9 that?
10 A From what you just told me (lape skips) someone with burn
11 marks, biting and kicking, that's all (tape skips).
12 That's what I'm referring to (tape skips).
13 MR. INGALDSON: (Indiscerible). (Tape skips) plane
14 (o catch before you go?
15 (OfF record)
16
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Page 66 Page 68
A Yes, sir. 1 reason at all to believe that there was a flammable
Q Crack their skull open maybe. 2 liquid, something that might start a fire if a spark hit?
B 3 A Yessir 3 Did you have any reason to believe that?
4 Q And you were — you also, [ guess, could have — | 4 A No, my wife had told me my smelling my smelling wasat
5 suppose it'd be possible, wouldn't it have been, for you 5 too good.
‘;1 6 guys to just grab Mr. Thomas's arms and just jerk themup | 6 Q That'sall [ have. Thanks.
' 7 behind his head to kind of cause pain in his arms to get 7 A Thank you
8 him to - instead of tasing him? You could have done 8 MR. BROWN: Okay. | have a couple more here for
9 that, right? 9 you
. 10 A Mmhmm. That was right. 10
11 Q That was possible. 11 EXAMINATION
; 12 A Ifs possible we could have done it, yes, sir. 12 BY MR BROWN:
{r] 13 Q Have you ever had your shoulder dislocated? 13 Q You said that you were tasered before?
14 A Yes,sir 14 A Yes
15 Q And you've been tased you said, right? 15 Q Have you ever been tasered multiple times within a five-
n 16 A Yes,sir 16  minute period?
’ 17 Q What feels ~ felt worse to you, the tase or the 17 A When |- when [ started to get — get back up, I guess
18 dislocated shoulder? 18 that — it - it was a tasing class and it was taught to
‘a 19 A Dislocation of the shoulder. 19 keep — to stay down.
! 20 Q Andafter you're tased, how long do you continue to feel {20 Q And how many times were you tased?
21 the pain from the tase? 21 A Oh, maybe twice.
' 22 A Notlong 22 Q Whatif you would have been tased five times?
l ’ 23 Q When it — once the electricity stops from the taser, do 23 A No.
4 24 you still..... 24 Q You think that may have caused a little bit more pain?
25 A A little while after, it wears ~ it stops. 25 A No.
’ Page 67 Page 69
1 Q How about your disiocated shoulder, how long were youin | 1 MR. INGALDSON: Objection, foundation.
2 pain with that? 2 Q Youdon't think it would have?
1' 3 A Days. We didn't want o cause any serious injuries 3 A No.
4 though, 4 Q How is that true?
5 Q There was some question about, you know, what — the 5 A It — it wears off very -- very shordy after you're
P 6 slipperiness on the floor and, you know, whether it could 6 tased.
! 42 7 have been flammable. Do you remember those questions? 7 Q Several minutes is what you were trained, right?
8 A Yes 8 A Yes, it wears off and you don't feel no pain anymore.
‘ 9 Q Youknow what gas smells like? 9 Q Now, look at these photos that - T don't know if these
}j 10 A Yes. 10 were — have you ever had a cut on your neck?
i 11 Q Do you know what kerosene smells like? 11 A No.
12 A Yes. 12 Q Have youever had a cut on your body?
1 13 Q Youknow what diesel fuel smells like? 13 A Oh, yes, on my leg.
: 14 A Yes. 14 Q Have you ever had a burn?
: 15 Q Did you smell any of thosc things? 15 A Yes.
16 A Oh, I couldn't tell, my nosc was slightly plugged because 16 () When you got humed, was it well within just a few
17 1 had a slight cold at the time, chest cold. My anelling 17 minutes?
18 wasn't - wasn't all that well. 18 A No.
19 ( If you smelled gas or diesel fuel or kerusene..... 19 Q You see all those marks on [homas Olson?
20 A I would have smelled it if it was there..... 20 A Yes.
21 Q . .would you have..... 21 Q And what part of his body is not photographed here in
22 A ..most likely. 22 front of you? These are photographs from your police
23 Q So when you say you don't know what was on the {loor..... 23 dcpartment.
24 A On the floor. 24 A You're asking what part of the body that's not.....
& .....did you have any reason to believe at all -- any 25 Q Not photographed, from the waist up.
TR R ST = Eoera e e e
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Page 70 Page 72
b A Okay. [ don't know. 1 and so [ just wanted to go on and Bates stamp them and give
Q Do you see his stomach there? 2 them to you today. A

3 A Yes, over here? 3 MR. INGALDSON: Well, I mean, | think if you're L

4 Q Where is his stomach at? 4 going to be asking these witnesses questions about them on -

S A [think that's his stomach. 5 things that they haven't seen, we haven't had a chance to talk 8

6 Q Ithink that's his shoulder. 6 to them about them. ¥

7 A Oh, that's his shoulder? It's hard to tell. Looked like 7 MR. BROWN: All right.

8 his stomach. 8 MR. INGALDSON: I'm going to object to that. Ia

9 Q You agree now that you see then that can — this 9 It's.... L.
10 collarbone, that that's the — his stomach? 10 MR. BROWN: [ think it's a fair — you know, as far “
11 A Oh, ycah, that — all nght. Okay. 11 as the objection goes, we'll let the record reflect that and -
12 Q Yousce that? So do you sec the stomach anywhere there?| 12 the only thing I'm asking him is just if those look like taser !
13 A You say this is ~ this looks like the stomach to me. 13 marks to him. |
14 Q Okay. All right. It looks like the stomach to you then. 14 MR. WIDMER: 1 also — 'm going to make an
15 That's fine. We'll talk with some uther folks about it 15 objection because the pictures you're showing him right now ( ]
16 too. These are some photos that our office took after 16 are pot pictures that I'm having — I see in this packet. | :
17 Thomas came in, 17 specifically don't see any of the — what appear to be
18 A Well, like I t0ld you, | never — [ never looked at his 18 indescent welts with hair. I don't know if this is going to ;
19 body. : 19 be produced or not but..... 11
20 Q Okay. Did you sce that — the stomach there? 20 MR. BROWN: Well, no — wait a minute, these have -
21 A Yes 21 been produced. The ones I just gave you have not been
22 Q And those look like plastic (ph) taser marks? 22 produced. :
23 A No. 23 MR. WIDMER: Those have been produced? ]
24 MR. WIDMER: Objection, foundation. 24 MR. BROWN: These have been produced.

25 A They don't look like taser marks. 25 MR. WIDMER: Do you recall when those have been
. Page 71 Page 73

1 Q Okay. 1 produced?

2 A That's a burn over there but they don't look like tasers, 2 MR. BROWN: [ don't but I can find out from my

3 really. Those are — those are tasers, yes. 3 office. These have not been produced. The ones I just gave !

4 Q Oh, we're just looking through the photos and we'll go on 4 you had not been produced. Let's leave those for a little bit

5 and identify these. These are photos that were produced 5 until we talk to the people that actually tasered.

6 by Power and Brown in our office and they have been 6 MR. WIDMER: Fine. ( ;

7 produced to the defendant. We have one..... 7 Q But these were taken at your police station, is that .

8 MR INGALDSON: Were these just produced today? 8 right?

9 MR. BROWN: Yes, they are just produced today, now 9 MR. WIDMER: Objection, he's already stated that he .
10 and... 10 doesn't know who took those pictures. J]
11 MR. INGALDSON: It looks like they were taken..... 11 MR. BROWN: Okay. :
12 MR. BROWN: They were taken some time ago, that's 12 Q But does this look like your police station here in the
13 true... 13 background? b]
14 A It does look like..... 14 A Yes. i
15 MR BROWN: _._and!believe that they..... 15 Q Okay. And is that -- who i3 that?

16 MR. INGALDSON: [ just want to make -- say an 16 A Sergeant Simon.

17 objection for the record, these — I Jon't know — these 17 Q Okay. And.....

18 should have been produced to us long before. This is..... 18 MR. BROWN: Have you ever seen that picture?

L9 MR. BROWN: They may have been given to Phil Palamer | 19 MR INGALDSON: s that it then?

20 during the settlement conference, actually, and to — we've 20 MR. BROWN: [.ct me see. That is, actually — let me

21 had a scttlement conference on this casc and they muy have 21 sce....

22 been given to Phil and to Margo at the settlement conference 22 Q) So your nose was stopped up that night, is that what

23 when we were talking about scttling this case because this 23 you're saying?

24 case has been up for a settlement conference in the past but | 24 A Yes. ,
id you fell over a trash bag and that's ail you i

=

e
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Page 74 Page 76
noticed in the floor, is that right? 1 TRANSCRIBER'S CERTIFICATE
A It was shippery, yes. 2 I, Linda S. Foley, hereby certify that the foregoing
3 Q Andmcmpplancntalmpondntyouﬁledyousaiddm 3 pagumxmbaoduhmughﬁmamaccmm,miwmplm
4 this caused you discomfort. Do you have a recollection 4 transcript of deposition of Dimitri Oaks in Case No. 4BE-07-
5 of that pain and discomfort? 5 00026 CI, Thomas J. Olson v, City of Hooper Bay, Officer
6 A Oh, onmy knee, yup, when he was kickang me. § Dimitri Oaks, Officer Charles Simom, Officer Nathan Joseph,
7 Q Okay, What would your reaction be if someone came into| 7 tramcribedbymcﬁom:co;ayofdrclectrwﬁcsmmd
8 your house at 4.00 in the moming and your children are 8 recording to the best of my knowledge and ability.
9 meandywwcwaslecpanddleywakeyoutmand 9
10 started to drag you out leaving your children there, 10 Apnl 29, 2008 .
11 would you try to stay? 11 Linda S. Foley, Transcriber
12 MR INGALDSON: Objection, scope, also form, 12
13 foundation and [ don't think this is relevant or likely to 13
14 lead to the discovery of relevant evidence. 14
15 Q You can still answer it. 15
16 A Dol have to answer it? 16
17 Q Yes. 17
18 MR. INGALDSON: Also, an incomplete hypothetical. | 18
19 A Oh, no, I guess I wouldn't like that. 13
20 Q Okay. And would you try to stay to make sure your 20
21 children are okay? 21
22 A Yes. 22
23 MR. BROWN: I have nothing further. 23
24 MR. WIDMER: | don't have any follow-up questions. | 24
25 MR. INGALDSON: ] just have one follow-up question. | 25
Page 75 Page 77
1 EXAMINATION 1
2 BY MR. INGALDSON:
3 Q Let's give the same example you were just asked, that
4 also that you were intoxicated and maybe you're not
5 asking — acting rationally wanting to stay but would you
6 be thankful that police officers came in and protected
7 your children?
B A Yecs,sir.
9 MR. INGALDSON: That's all I have.
10 MR. BROWN: Thank you. You are done. Have a good
11 afternoon.
12 A Allnght
13 MR. BROWN: It was nice to meet you, sit.
14 A Allright.
Ls MR. BROWN: Okay.
16 {OfF record)
L7
18
19
20
21
22
123
9.
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IN THE SUPERIOR COURT FOR THE STATE OF ALASKA
FOURTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT AT BETHEL
THOMAS J. OLSON, )
)
Plaintiff, j i]
) -
V. ) :}
)
CITY OF HOOPER BAY, ) I]
OFFICER DIMITRI OAKS, ) [
OFFICER CHARLES SIMON and ) fi
OFFICER NATHAN JOSEPH, ) .
) b
Defendants. )
‘. )
No. 4BE-07-00026 CI
VOLUME I !5

]
}
.4

VIDEOTAPED DEPOSITION OF NATHAN JOSEPH

,,,

Pages 2 through 40, inclusive

Aapril 23, 2008

Hooper Bay, Alaska
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Olson v. Hooper Bay

4BE-07-26 CI

i Page 2 Page 4
[N THE SUPERIOR COURT FOR THE STATE OF ALASKA | 1 INDEX
} FOURTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT AT BETHEL 2
i 3 THOMAS J. OLSON, ) 3
4 ) 4 EXAMINATION BY: PAGE(s)
5 Plainuff, ) S
] 6 ) 6 Mr. Brown 6
7 v. ) 7
; 8 ) 8 EXHIBITS: IDENTIFIED
: ! 9 CITY OF HOOPER BAY, ) 9
b 10 OFFICER DIMITRI OAKS, ) 10 F - Affidavit of Nathan Joseph 35
) 11 OFFICER CHARLES SIMON and ) 11
; } 12 OFFICER NATHAN JOSEPH, ) 12 G- Police report 35
‘ 13 ) i3
14 Defendants. ) 14
[ L ) 1s
|- 16 No. 4BE-07-00026 Cl1 16
17 17
¢ 18 VOLUME | 18
( ! 19 19
! 20 VIDEOTAPED DEPOSITION OF NATHAN JOSEPH 20
21 21
¢ 22 takmonbd:alfofd'ac?!amﬁﬂ'.pmwnmnodoe,ame 22
; 23 Sea Lion Corporation Boardroom, Hooper Bay, Alaska, before 23
24 SmE.Bmwn,aNomyPublicforﬂlcSmofAlash. 24
/ 25 25
Page 3 Page 5
1 APPEARANCES 1 Hooper Bay, Alaska, April 23, 2008
2 2
! 3 For the PlaintifF: 3 MR. BROWN: Suit yourself. You look good. All
4 SEAN E. BROWN 4 right. Once again, I'll say the same thing at the beginning,
5 POWER & BROWN, LI.C 5 we're here on Thomas Olson versus City of Hooper Bay, Officer §
L j 6 Box 1809 6 Dimitri Oaks, Officer Charles Simon, Officer Nathan Joseph,
. 7 Bethel, Alaska 99559 7 case number 4BE-07-26 CL. My name is Sean Brown. I'm
8 (907) 5434700 - 8  plaintiffs attomey but I'm also a notary for the State of
9 9 Alaska so I can issue an cath to you. If you'd raise your
3 10 For the Defendants: 10 right hand and state your name?
11 11 MR. JOSEPH: Nathan Joseph.
12 MATTHEW WIDMER 12 (Oath administered)
! 13 ANGSTMAN LAW OFFICE 13 MR. JOSEPH: Yes.
i 14 Box 585 14 MR. BROWN: Thank you. All right. And I think
15 Bethel, Alaska 99559 5 everyone pretty much knows who's here by now so we'll just —
16 1907) 543-2972 16 oh, good All right. Okay,
17 17
18 WILLIAM I INGALDSON 18 NATHAN JOSEPH
19 INGALDSON, MAASSEN & FITZGERALD, PC |19 called as 2 witness herein on behalf of the
20 313 West Third Avenue 20 Plaintit}, baving been duly swom upon oath
21 Anchorage, Alaska 99501 21 by Mr. Sean K. Brown, Notary Public, was
22 {907) 258-8750 22 examined and testified as follows:
23 23
24 24 EXAMINATION
‘ J 25 BY MR. BROWN:
2 (Pages 2 to 5)
April 23, 2008
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Page 6 Page 8
Q So, Mr. Joseph, could you state and spell your name and 1 Q And who has told you that?
give your address, please? 2 A [I've had that training from Chief Hoelscher who's an
3 A Nathan Joseph. N-a-t-h-a-0. Jo-s¢-p-h. P.O. Box 3 instructor on the taser and I've had it again down in
4 , Hooper Bay, Alaska, 99604. 4 Sitka by Corporal Grantineau (ph).
5 Q And how long have you becn s member of the Hooper Bay ] 5 Q  What about a choke-hold, is that considered 2 hard hand
6 Police Department? 6 or a soft hand?
7 A Justabout 11 years. 7 A Choke hoid? Definitely not using soft hand.
8 Q Allrght And how — what type of training have you 8 Q Sothat would be hard hand then?
9 received during those 11 years? 9 A That would be right, they're using deadly force.
10 A Well, back in ‘99, [ had a ~ a basic VPO training up in 10 Q What about just wrapping your hands around someone,
11 Kotzebue. It was for two weeks. A few months later, [ 11 holding them, is that hard band or soft hand?
12 had the advanced VPO training up — down in King Salmon |12 A It - it would depend on where you're holding onto them.
13 and just recently, | graduated from the 10-week VPSO 13 Q Tell me.
14 training..... 14 A See, if you — if you were holding a person around the
15 Q Congratulations 15 body.....
16 A .. in Sitka. 16 Q Mm-hmm
17 Q And was any of the training that you just mentioned — 17 A ... that's not considered using hard hand. It's just
18 you were here earlicr when Dimitri Oaks testified. Was 18 restraining them.
19 any of the training you just mentioned the same as what 19 Q Okay. Sois that soft hand or is it not soft hand
20 Mr. Oaks had? 20 cither?
21 A The first one, yes. 21 A It's just restraining a person.
22 Q Okay. And where was that training specifically? 22 Q So what's soft hand?
23 A That was — that train — that first training [ bad was 23 A Soft hand is when you put your hand on somebody, ask them
24 up in Kotzebue. 24 to comne with you.
25 Q Okay. And what was the name of that, if you remember? | 25 Q Okay. On the night that you went over to Thomas Olson's
. Page 7 Page 9
1 A Basic VPO training. 1 house - wetl, let's back up. First of all, I've asked
2 Q And during that training, at that time, were there tasers 2 everyone else, I'l] ask you too. What is Mr. Olson's
3 used? 3 criminal history?
4 A No. 4 A Mr. Olson's criminal history? In the past, he has been
5 Q So, based upon the training you received at that point, 5 assaultive, uncooperative and combative with police
6 what was considered reasonable and legal — or without 6 officers.
7 being legal, just reasonable? What was considered 7 Q Allright Are you aware of anything that happened 10
8 reasonable as far as use of force if someone was not 8 ycars ago?
9 coming along? 9 A No.
10 A Well, reasonable would be soft hand and if that didn't 10 Q Aliright. So if your attorneys made any reference that
11 work, forcing would be used. If that didn't work, we'd 11 you had knowledge of something that happened 10 years
12 2o to a hard hand. If there wasn't — a hard hand didn't 12 ago, that would be not accurate, is that right?
13 work, we'd go to a impact weapon. 13 A You'd have to consult them about it first.
14 Q Whatis hard hand? 14 Q Tell me what happened to Mr. Olson 10 years ago.
15 A It's when we hit somebody with our clbow, fist, knees. 15 A [ wouldn't know what happened to Mr. Olson 10 years ago.
16 Q Okay. All right. And was hard handed force used on Mr. | 16 Q Okay. And then have you ever investigated Mr. Olson at
17 Olson? 17 any other time for anything he's dooe to himself?
18 A No. 13 A Not that | can recall.
19 Q Whynot? 19 Q Okay. So you are the onc that wrote about slime on the
20 A [t wasn't necessary. 20 tloor?
21 ) Andthe training that you have received up until now Z1 A Yes.
22 indicates that it's more reasonable to use a taser than 22 Q Tcll me what slime s,
23 it is to hit someone. 23 A Slime is pretty slimy on the floors. The floor was
24 A In my experience, a taser is more reasonable than hiting | 24 really slick. Even when we stepped on it, it felt hke
t somebody, yes. 25 slime, just rally slippery.....
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3 Olson v. Hooper Bay 4BE-07-26 CI
Page 10 Page 12
Q Couldtt.... 1 doorandtheulhcncxtdooropm,isthztoorrect?
‘ A and you had to keep your balance just towalk onthe | 2 A Yes.
B 3 floor. 3 Q Aﬂﬁﬂ&Soymhdmmmmmummuwuuhmhm
4 Q Could it have been from the snow on your shoe? 4 £0 0N upstairy, is that right?
5 A No. 5 A Yes, to where the kids had come in.
q 6 Q Allright. Now, you were seated most of the time with 6 Q So you go upstairs and you open the door?
‘ 7 , iso't that right? 7 A The upstairs door? There was no upstairs door at that
8 A Yes. 8 time, if there is even a door now.
! 9 Q And in your report, there's reference by Mr. Oaks that 9 Q All ight. Well, Mr. Oaks testified carlier that there
; 10 therc was a garbage bag with garbage in it and I believe | 10 was an upstairs door.
11 Mr. Simon says the same thing. Neither one of them 11 A The entrance, ! remember a door.
} 12 mentioned this slime on the floor and they're the ones 12 Q Allright. So you go upstairs and you open whatcver it
3 13 lhaxwemstandingv.punstufﬂmtime,rigbx? 13 is,aboard,adoor,whatever.andgoinandyousaidit
14 A They weren't the only ones standing. [ was standiogup |14  was hot inside, is that right?
f 15 also. 15 A Yes, it was hot inside the house.
! 3 16 Q Okay. Well, now, Mr. Oaks stated that you were actually 16 Q And whenI'm talking about that, I'm talking about what
‘ 17 seated holding . Is that inaccurate? 17 you said in your police report, not just now, that it was
18 A Yes 18  hot inside there, right?
1 19 Q Okay. Where were you standing? 19 A Yes,
! 20 A I was standing next to at the couch. 20 Q Were the lights on or off?
21 Q And bow far was that from the action going on? 21 A There was one light in the room and it was pretty dim.
. 22 A I'dsay about six feet. 22 Q Olay. Now, you said you slipped. Did you slip going up
H 23 Q Out of kicking distance though? 23 the stairs or was it at the top of the stairs?
’ 24 A Yes 24 A Atthe top of the stairs.
25 Q And out of biting distance. 25_Q Before you got off the stairs or once you were off the
Page 11 Page 13
1 A Yes 1 stairs?
. 2 Q Were you focused on or were you focusedonBoya | 2 A Once [ was off the stairs and past the trash can.
’ 3 control? 3 Q Okay.
4 A Iwas—[was mainly focused on 4 A The trash bag, not the can, trash bag.
5 Q Solet's talk about what happened that night when you got | 5 Q  There was a trash bag on the floor.
i 6 to the residence. 6 A Yes, on the floor.
{ 3" 7 A Okay. 7 Q Okay. Allright. And that had the garbage in it that we
8 Q Tell meabout it 8 were talking about earlier?
% A When we got to the residence after receivingaphonecall | 9 A Yes.
;j 10 from Boya's girifriend, who they have 10 Q Allright. Now, that second door was actually an arctic
v 11 quite a bit of kids together, got to the house. It was 11 entry also, isn't it? [mean, there's arctic entry or
12 after 4:00 in the moming. 1 saw that both doors were 12 the port, as you call it here, but even under their
' 13 open, the arctic entrance and the main door to the house. 13 house, that's kind of an arctic entry also. They don't
' 14 [ knocked on the inside door about four times and then 14 really live downstairs, do they?
15 one of the kids answered the door saying come in so we 15 A No
16 went in. We went up the steps.  [hat's where | almost 16 Q Allright. Did you know that before you went there that
17 slipped was at the top by — by the trash, a plastic bag 17 night?
18 and a trash heap. Right -- right - right when | stepped 18 A Not that [ remember.
! past that, I uhnost slipped and [ saw that was on 19 Q Okay. Well, you were talking about ali these assaults
20 the couch. 20 and things. llave you never investigated any of them?
21 Q Lef's - I'm sorry to interrupt you but, just so I'm 21 A No.
22 clear her, I'm not sure I understand, so you go in the 22 () All nght. So how did you know about them?
23 tirst door..... <3 A He's bad a past hustory with other police officers that
4 A Yes. 24 responded to calls.

... and from your vantage point, you can see the first 25

.

Q Okay. Did you know about that right then?
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Page 14 Page 16
A Yes. 1 A Yes
Q Tell me specifically what you knew going in. 2 Q And the children are awake by now because you've been
3 A [ knew that he's been assaultive towards police officers 3 knocking on the doors, right?
4 in the past. 4 MR. INGALDSON: Objection, foundation.
5 Q Okay. Who? 5 Q They're not awake?
6 A [ can't remember which ones. 6 A Some of them are already awake.
7 Q Who told you that? 7 Q That's what [ sad. So.....
8 A 1 wasn't told by any of them. [ read. 8 A  Yousad all of them.
9 Q Whatdid you read? 9 Q Okay. So how many were awake?
10 A [ read that he's been assaultive with police officers, 10 A I don't remember.
11 uncooperative, 11 Q Youdon't remember?
12 Q Where did —~ where'd you read that? 12 A No.
13 A Inthe police department. 13 Q Okay. So you get to the top of the steps and there's
14 Q Where? 14 actually 2 wall there behind the steps, right? [ mean, a
15 A ['mnot going to account for details of where. It's in 15 slanted wall 50 it -- as you come up, you can see into
16  the paper work. 16 the room? Do you remernber that?
17 Q Okay. Ineed to know where because I'd like to see those | 17 A Well, there's a wall right at the top of the stairway.
18 documents myself so if you could tell — so we couldget |18 It's not a very big wall.
19 your attorney to get them, 19 Q Correct. Okay. So you get inside, sce these two men
20 A They would be filed. 20 asleep. What do you do? 4:00 in the moming, what do
21 Q Where? 21 you do?
22 A The cabinets, file cabinets in the police department..... 22 A Whatdodo?
23 Q Okay. 23 Q Yeah
24 A ...oron dispatch cards. 24 A Sectwo men asleep.
25 Q Allright. 25 Q It's warm.
Page 15 Page 17
1 A  And these have — these have them on dispatch cards, 1 A Well, the door's open, go check to sce if any of the men
2 (Q How many of those did you read? 2 can wake up. Soon as I get clo — approach them, trying
3 A [Iread quite a bit. 3 to wake them up, can smell the alcobol coming from their
4 Q How many do you think that you read of him? 4 breath.
5 A [don't remember. 5 Q Okay. Back up a little bit. Now, are we agreeing that
6 Q Did you remember that night? 6 the top had a board over it and may not be considered a
7 A | remember some of them, not all of them. 7 door but it did have a board laying down on it that would
8 Q Tell me what you remember. 8 ~ kept it wann in there? Do you agree with that?
9 A [ remember that he's been assaultive towards police 9 A No
10 officers, uncooperative. 10 Q Youdon't agree with that?
11 Q But you don't remember who, right? 11 A No.
12 A No. 12 Q How is it so warm in there if it was so cold outside?
13 Q You don't remember how many. 13 A It'sa- it's a two-story building. All that heat stays
14 A Yes 14 up. The stove was up to 90 something degrees.
15 Q All nght. So you saw it on dispatch card or a police 15 () Okay. So you go inside, sce the two men asleep. You
16 report or somcthing? 16 said that you smelled alcohol on their breath, is that
17 A Yes. 17 nght?
18 Q Allight. Okay. So you go in, you go upstairs and it's 18 A Yes, when I approached
19 4:00 in the mormng and the first thing you see is two 19 Q Whichone?
20 men aslecp, is that night? 20 A Both
21 A Inkind -- different parts of the house, yes. 21 Q Same time?
22 Q Butit's just one big room, correct? 22 A No, | went and approached first and then |
23 A Yes. 23 approached [homas.
24 () And so you sce two men asleep in -- on - onc onacouch, | 24 (Q  And what's Mr. Oaks doing?
. one on the bed. 25 A Mr. Oaks is following me.
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[ Page 18 Page 20
Q  Just nght behind you? 1 A Forhissafcty,oursafetymddicnfctyofcvaybody
A Yes. 2 clsebcmuscwedidn‘twamanybodytoga-logﬂhm
3 Q Okay. Sodo you walk over o and what do you say? | 1 or into a fight.
4 A Iy waking him up, saying , , wake up. 4 Q And should that be on the tape?
5 Q Okay. 5 A Yes.
6 A  Wouln't wake up. 6 Q Olay. Goon.
7 Q And then what do you do next? 7 A And as we continue, he's starting to yell in the house,
8 A And then | started shaking him and waking him up, then | 8 saying that we're trespassing and I teil him no, we're
9 walk over to Boya. 9 not trespassing, we were told to come in and he continues
10 Q Okay. 10 that we're trespassing and that you can get shot for
11 A [Icall his name out a few times. I shook — if | 11 trespassing. That's what he tells us.
12 remember correctly, [ shook him too. 12 Q Okay.
13 Q Uh-huh 13 A [said no, we're not trespassing.
14 A Didn't wake up night away. 14 Q Allright Now, you were talking about the handcufTs.
15 Q Allright. So then — and then what do you do? 15 Before you handcuffed him.....
16 A Thenas — as I'm walking away, he wakes up and I go up 16 A What I wanted to do before handcuffing him was tell him
17 to him and [ talk to himn and be's asking what we're doing 17 to stand up so I can do a quick ficld sobricty test on
18 in the house and I told him that we're here for 3 welfare 18 him.
19 check, make sure cverybody who's at the house is okay. 19 Q And what happened there?
20 Q And at that point, was everyone okay? 20 A That's when he started getting out of control.
21 A Idon'tknow how long the children were Icft alone with 21 Q How so?
22 two intoxicated people. If you want to call two 22 A He said I was (indiscernible - whispering) the way he's
23 intoxicated people okay, no, it's not okay. 23 raising his boys, clenching his fists.
24 Q From your viewpoint, what you could sec, was anyone burt?| 2 4 Q Okay. And what did — so after you get the handcuffs on
25 A The kids weren't hurt. Doors left wide open. 25 him, then does he sit back down?
Page 19 Page 21
1 Q It was warm. 1 A No, he stands up.
2 A Itwashet. 2 Q Now, where do you call for backup along in there?
3 Q Sohotinside. The achults were asleep. For all you 3 A After trying to wake up again.
4 know, the children — some of the children were asleep 4 Q Okay. Sonow you have Thomas standing.
5 and you wake him up and he asked you what you're doing | 5 A Mm-hmm.
6 here, is that right? 6 Q Is Dimitri Oaks by him?
7 A Yes 7 A Yes.
8 Q And what -- and you said you were there for what? 8 Q Andyou walk over to ?
9 A To do a welfare check. 9 A Yes
10 Q Okay. And? 10 Q Andyoutry to wake him up?
11 A Just make sure everybody in the house was okay. 11 A Yes
12 Q Allright. And so what happens next? 12 Q Okay. And what happens?
13 A Boya gets pretty combative and started just clenching his { 13 A Well, Thomas continues to come into the room where the
14 fists. What I do is [ put the handcuffs on him and tell 14 kids, that newborn and ‘were.
15 him 'm putting on thern - him for his safety and our 15 Q Butit's oncroom. You just said that
16 safety and then. ... 16 A To the area of them.
17 Q Ijust want to be sure we're recording. Maybe just speak {17 Q Okay.
18 up 4 linle bit. You have a real light voice. | just 13 A Conunucs his yelling. He's tclling us that we're
19 want to be sure we're picking you up. 13 scaring his kids.
20 A Mm-bmm 20 Q Were you?
21 Q Sofyou'd just stay -- you know, because if you were 21 A No.
22 putting the handcufls on him - say you were doing that 22 Q Okay.
213 for his safety. 23 A We weren't yelling. We were talking normally and told
24 A Yes. 24 him — he's the one that's doing all the yelling and
.3 Okay. Go on 25 scaning his kids at that time that all the kids were
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Q
A

Well, s wife had just cailed though, right?
Yes, s wife called

Page 22 Page 24
crying. 1 Q Somebody did, right?
Q Okay. 2 A His wife called - not his wife, his girifriend.
3 A And somewhere in that time, | called for backup to help 3 Q Ohay. So someone had called.
4 with the kids and escort the prisoner over to the police 4 A Yes
S department. 5 Q Allright So — well, you said it's hard to find
6 Q Allnght. Again, [just want you to be sure — talk up 6 someone at 4:00 in the morning.
7 so we can be sure we're getting you recorded because it's 7 A Yes, and after.....
8 really light. All right. And then - so now, you're 8 Q What were you going to do with the kids after you
9 walking over to ? ] arrested him?
10 A Yes. 10 A After we called — after [ called for a backup so we can
11 Q Allright But now you're teiling me you were having 11 get them over after we get both — both Thomas and
12 this conversation with Thomas. 12 to the house, while that oae officer’s at the house, we'd
13 A [ can walk and talk at the same time. 13 have somebody else go to the house, stay with the kids.
14 Q DBecause it's such a — it's one room. 14 Q Who?
15 A Yes. 15 A The mother.
16 Q Allnight So you walk over to the area where is 16 Q Where was she?
17 and what do you do? 17 A She was at her mom's house.
18 A Start shaking him some more trying to wake him up, 18 Q Why didn't you just go get her to start with?
19 yelling off his name. 19 A Because when you leave kids that young alone, it's a
20 Q And what does he do? 20 crime.
21 A Nothing. 21 Q But why didn't you just go get the mother on the way over
22 Q And then what happens? 22 there or tell whoever you were calling for backup have
23 A Boya started yelling some more, got louder and louder and | 23 the mom to come over?
24 some time after -- somewhere after all — during all the 24 A There's — there's —~ it's — it's very hard when you're
25 yelling, wakes up because Boya here gets loud 25 __dealing with one person, one police officer with two
Page 23 Page 25
P enough. 1 intoxicated people, one of them really aggreasive and the
2 Q AndisSimon here yet? 2 other one can be aggressive on that police officer. It's
3 A Ne 3 an officer safety issue. )
4 Q Okay. Goon. 4 Q I wasn't asking you to leave one officer there.
5 A AndIasked him if okay and then asked him if 5 A That's what you were just saying.
6 he’s been drinking. [ wouldn't recall what he said but 1 6 Q You called Simon to come over, is that right?
7 could smell the alcohol coming from his breath and 1 7 A Yes, [ did
8 remember putting on —~ handcuffs on him. 8 Q And you knew where the mother of the children were?
9 Q On ? 9 A Yes
10 A Yes. 10 Q And as of this time, there's no crime being committed in
11 Q Okay. 11 the house. There's two intoxicated men in the house with
12 A Atthat point in time, | Jecided to arrest both and 12 the children, is that right?
13 Thomas. 13 A Backup to help with the escort of the prisoner to the
14 Q Now, why were you arresting ? 14 police department.
15 A Because he was an intoxicated adult inside the house 15 Q Okay. Let's back up again. Why.....
15 along with his brother, Thomas. 16 A While ~ while one -- while one police otficer's -- is at
17 @ So do you always arrest mtoxicated adults? 17 the house and they get that one prisoner to the police
18 A Yes. Notalways. 18 department, they — they get the other prisoner coming
19 Q Could you have just removed the children trom the home? | 19 back to the police department. Then that one officer
20 A Yes. | could have done that 20 that has the time can go pick up the parent, other
21 Q Why didn't you? 21 parent, and bring them over.
22 A Well, it's pretty hard to find some people 4-00 in the 22 Q Okay. let'sback up. Allight You have two officers
23 morning. 23 in the house.
24 A Yes

- TEOTT

25 Q You have two drunk men in the house.
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Page 28

Page 2§

A Yes 1 Q Allright So then what happens next?
%< Q You decide to arrest | because he's just drunk. 2 A Okay. Youre getting me confused here. You're going to
3 A Ub-huh Becausc what he was doing was illegal t0o..... 3 this, you're going to that and you're going back to this
4 Q What? L) and then afler 1 explain what happened, you're teiling me
S A ... and | cannot leave children that very young — that S to go back to that same spot to explain again and after
6 age with a dnnk ~ drunk relatives, 6 cxplaining as clear as | can and you're sl going back
7 Q BmyoucouldhavcaskchfﬁcaSimmtostopbyaxﬂgct 7 to that area.
8 the mom and send her home. 8 Q Right Okay. So do you need me to ask that question
9 A It would have gotten a Jot worse than what it was. 9 again?
10 Q How do you know? 10 A If's how you're asking the question.
11 A Just how it ends up. 11 Q What happens next?
12 Q How do you know? 12 A What happens next is after wakes up, I - if |
13 A Because, in my experience, that signi — significant 13 remember correctly, 1 put the handcuffs on him to detain
14 other of the person that's being arrested tums on the 14 himamdlcuhcstmsgcrtinga-’lbomnsgmalong
18 police officers. 15 worse and that's when [ called for backup,
16 Q Okay. So - buthere you thought that the significant 16 Q Why did you shine your flashlight on Boya, on Mr. Olson?
17 other had actuaily cailed you to go do a welfare check, 17 A Tosee if be was — sce him wake up. He was in a dark
18 is that right? 18 arca of the house.
13 A It happens that way and the significant other can attack 19 Q Well, I thought it was just one room.
20 the police officers at the same time. This happened in 20 A Tbe light was in this part of the room and be was farther
21 my experience. 21 over here.
22 Q Allright. So, needless to say, YOu were now arresting 22 Q Allright. Sonow you have in bandcufTs.
23 two men even though the children appear to be just fine. 23 A Mm-bmm.
24 A They wouldn't be fine with two men passed out on 24 Q You have Mr. Olson in handcuffs.
25 (indiscernible). 25 A Yes.

’ pPage 27 Page 29
1 Q Allof thesc ariminal charges were dropped, is that 1 Q Mr.Olsonisycllingyousayandtbenkccpgohlg. What
2 right? 2 do you do?

3 A Idon't know. 3 A Oh,Icall for backup. I can't remember how long it
4 Q Would it swprise you to learn that they were? 4 takes for Sergeant Simon to get to the residence and as
5 A Yeah 5 they were trying to — when they were trying to escort
6 Q Were you ever called to testify? 6 Thomas out of the house, they got on -- right around the
7 A Not that I can recall. 7 trash bag and all of them fell.
8 Q Okay. Allright. So you're upstairs now. Youareover | 8 Q So you remember it as all three fell together?
9 with - Oaks is with Mr. Olson. What happens next? | 3 A Yes.
10 A Okay. You need to be more clear of where you're going | 10 Q And you saw that?
11 to. 11 A [looked back and saw that they were falling down on the
12 Q Okay. I just - don't want to confuse yow. [ want to 12 floor.
13 be very clear with you and, backing up, my understanding{ 13 Q So you don't know that it was the trash bag that caused
14 was that you had just walked over to wake up..... 14 them to fall or what caused them to fall but you just saw
15 A Mm-hmm 15 them all -- all on the floor?
16 (Q .. and you were shaking him awake. 16 A Yes
17 A Attempting to. 17 Q Okay. Just want to be sure, [ just want to know what you
18 Q Okay. And then you said that Boya, Mr. Olson..... 13 saw.
19 A Mm-hmm. 13 A Mm-hmm
20 Q ... yelling, woke -- awoke , 1s that correct? 20 Q Allrght? So then you see the three of them on the
21 A Yeah, after quite a — after awhile of yelling..... 21 floor.
22 Q Hadyou .. 22 A Mm-hmm
Q  Where exactly do you remember them being?

23 A he finally came to.
24 Q Had you already called for backup at that point?

t/\ Not that | can recall. [

23

24
25

A let's sce, where the trash bag was, the entrance, |
remember Corporal Si — Sergeant Simon right around the

e T e TR I T T T

TRANSCRIPTION SUPPORT SERVICES

8 (Pages 26 to 29)

April 23, 2008
d042212d-13dd-4708-83b6-784(04788040

Exc.270



Olson v. Hooper Bay

4BE-07-26 CI

Page 32

; 24 A He was intoxicated at the time, yes.
. Q And you saw him kick?

oo <~y

Page 30
trash bag, Boya and Officer Oaks. 1 A Yes
Q Okay. 2 Q Okay. And then — now, were you the supervisor of Mr.
3 A Asthey were getting up, [ remember Boya kicking atone | 3 Simon and Mr, Oaks?
4 of them. 4 A [ stll am their supervisor.
5 Q Whichone? 5 Q Okay. Allnght Sotell me what happens when officers
6 A 1can't remember which one he was kicking at first. 6 get up.
7 Q Help me understand that. So you remember wherethey ~ | 7 A When the officers get up, Thomas turns to one, starts
8  youremember seeing them fall. 8 kicking at him. As he — that position he was in, he
9 A Yes 9 went back, tumed around, started kicking at the other
10 Q You remember sccing him on the ground. 10 officer. The — Officer Oaks falls down and then be
11 A Yes 11 turns back and starts kicking at Sergeant Simon.
12 Q You remember seeing all three of them on the ground. 12 Sergeant Simon falls down and, as Officer Oaks is trying
13 A Yes. 13 to approach him again, Thomas starts turning and
14 Q You remember secing them stand up. 14 somewhere in that time frame, | looked to — looked at
15 A [I've seen all three of them on the ground more than once. | 15 . He looked like he was getting ready to kick at me
16 Q Okay. You see them — you're the first one to tell us 16 so [ asked him if he was going to kick at me several
17 that today. Do you realize that? 17 times and he answered yes and that's whea [ turned my
18 A Yes, 1 do. 18 attention to him.
19 Q Okay. And then you see them — you see the two officers {19 Q  So, generally, when people are going to kick at you, is
20 stand up. 20 that kind of how it works, you just look over at them,
21 A Yes. 21 you say are you going to kick me now and they say yes or
22 Q Aliright. And at that point, you see Thomas kick but 22 how does that usually work?
23 you don't know where or who? 23 A It was an obs — observation I saw and I - | asked him
24 A Yes 24 and be said yes and that's when 1 grabbed him, flipped
25 Q So just kind of a drunk man kicking? 25 him over to keep him from kicking at me.
’ Page 31 Page 33
A Can you say that again? 1 UNKNOWN: Anybody's planning on lcaving, the plane
2 Q Well, it was just — you know, [ mean, you've seen drunk 2 should be here any minute,
3 men kick before, haven't you? 3 "~ MR. BROWN: Okay. All right.
4 A Tveseen intoxicated people kicking, yes. 4 UNKNOWN: Those are the last flights.
5 Q Isthat kind of what he was doing? 5 MR. BROWN: Thank you.
6 A He was kicking his — kicking at the officer so he 6 MR. WIDMER: Thank you.
7 wouldn't take him out. 7 MR. BROWN: Thank you very much.
8 Q You don't really know why he was kicking, do you? I'm 8 MR. INGALDSON: If you want to hit the main ones, if
9 just asking you what you saw, 9 you want o, we can keep this open too if you want, you know.
10 A Yes 10 MR. BROWN: Okay. We'll sce.
11 Q Okay. What you observed, was it -- you observedadrunk | 11 Q When have you ever said that the two officers fell -
12 man kicking? 12 both fell? Have you cver said that before today?
13 A Ch, ] observed Thomas to be kicking at both Sergeant 13 A Did I say that they both fell?
14 Simon and Corporal Oaks. 14 Q You said they both fell twice. You saw them on the floor
15 Q Thsis different than what you just said which was you 15 more than once.
16 saw him kick at one of them but you did not know which 16 A Yes, [ saw them on the floor more than once.
17 one, 17 Q@ Have you ever said that before today?
18 A [don't know which one he was kicking atbut I..... 18 A Notthat | can recall.
13 Q Yousaw a drunk man kick. 19 @ Okay. And before today, you wrote a police report, i9
20 A L but I do know they were taking him out because | 20 that right?
21 instructed them to take him out. 21 A Yes, ldid
22 Q Okay. Tryto answer my question. Youjustsaw adrunk {22 Q And in that police report, you wrote a — seven pages of
23 man kick. 23 police report.
24 A Okay.

25 Q Okay? And it looks like you wrote maybe three with a
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Page 34 Page 36
cover also. You do not mention that there. 1w
A Mm-hmm. 2 A Mm-hmm.
3 Q Do you agree with that? 3 Q Youagree? [t's a2 — you wrote this. This is your use
4 A No 4 of force report, right?
5 Q Let'sseeit. Tell me when you're doge. 5 A Yes
6 (Pause) 6 Q Thomas started kicking at both Corporal Simon and Officer
7 A [I'mdone. It's not in the police reports for me here and 7 Oaks, kicking Corporal Simon on the chest of the right
8 now. 8 thigh and in the left shin and kicking Officer Oaks in
9 Q Okay. That's one human crror. All right Then you did | 9 the left knee twice and continued to kick officers when
10 anaffidavit to support the..... 10 they couldn't get — couldn't get what's that word?
11 A [didn't write the affidavit. 11 A Control.
12 Q Who wrote it? 12 Q . control of him. I deployed my taser and drive
13 A Theattorneys did. 13 stunned him with a what? Brent? Drive stunned him
14 Q Didyou read n? 14 approximately five or six times. So you drive stun him
15 A Yes, [ did, I'veread it..... 15 five or six times. This is in addition to the.....
16 Q Didyou think it was true? 16 A ldidacycle five or six times and the drive stmning
17 A TI'veread it over. I've got it, for instance, when 17 was, well, three or four times,
18 this..... 18 Q Okay. But you put here you drive sturmed him
19 Q Okay. 19 approximately five or six times. Is that what you say,
20 A That's..... 20 drive stunned him five or six times?
21 Q Soyou had a chance to change it before you signed it? |21 A 1 deployed my taser and 1 drove stunned him approximately
22 A Yes. 22 five o six times. [ was -- that's sort of in cycles.
23 Q Didyouadd in they are the (indiscernible)? 23 Q Okay. After he calmed down, afier that, many drive
24 (Pause) 24 stuns. [ deployed the taser because Thomas was a threat
25 MR. INGALDSON: How're we looking, Sean? 25 with the floor being slippery and the trash the officers
. Page 35 Page 37
MR. BROWN: Mm-hmm. 1 were slipping on. Is that right?
2 MR. INGALDSON: How are we looking? 2 A Yes
3 MR. BROWN: That too. 3 Q Okay. Sothose deployed — you're doing five o six.....
4 A Well, I see in here that Officer Oaks was kicking 4 A Mm-hmm.
5 (indiscernible), not that (indiscemnible). 5 Q ...the other officer's done about seven, we've heard.
6 Q Okay. And then in our use of -- okay. So I'm going to 6 Sot's about 13 times. [s that right?
7 mark that exhibit F and that is your affidavit of Nathan 7 A Notthatl recall.
8 Joseph..... 8 Q Okay. You say you don't recall but you've got five or
9 A Mm-bmm 9 six here.
10 Q ..which does not indicate anything about two people |10 A Yes.
11 following and an exhibit G which does not indicate 11 Q Olay. Simon just testified awhile ago. You were in the
12 anything which is — well, G, which is the police report 12 room.
13 which does not indicate anything about anyone falling. 13 A Yes
14 A Mm-hmm 14 Q Hedid it with seven.
15 Q And you agree with that, correct, does not indicate 15 A Yes
16 anything about two people falling down? 16 Q How many is that? [ow many drive stuns is that, six plus
17 A Mm hmm 17 seven?
18 Q About everyoune falling twice, is that nght? Do you 18 A Tbhat's 13,
19 agree with that? 19 Q Thirteen. And then you still deployed the taser again,
20 A Yes. 20 is that right?
21 Q Okay. Now, let’s look at your use of force here. 21 A No.
b22 Officers went to do a welfare check, found both Thomas {22 Q [ deployed the taser because Thomas was a threat,
123 and Peter to be passed out, detained both. When Thomas |23 A If that's what (indiscernible - whispering).
' 24 was behind, escorted, Corporal Simon and Officer Oaks |24 Q All ight. And on top of all this, sometimes when you
‘ shift from -- slip from the trash with Thomas. They got |25 were deploying the taser, Thomas was over on his belly
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Page 18

with his hands behind us back. Isn't that correct?

A Yes. Sull struggling with the officers.
3 Q And you think that's appropriate use of force?
4 A Yes, with him still struggling with the officers, yes.
5 Q On his belly having been drive stunned repeated times.
6§ A Notrepeated times.
7 Q Okay. Well, seven plus six?
8 A No.
9 Q How many?
10 A He was drive stummed at least once or twice when he was

11 onhis belly. He was probably being drove stunned at the

page 40

moming. We'll call him and what time are you on duty
tomormow?
A lgetmat 1:00 o'clock in the afternoon.
MR. INGALDSON: Maybe | can (imdiscernible).
MR. WIDMER: 11 set somcthing up.
A And [~ and [ have managerial duties sometime m the
afternooe too.
MR. INGALDSON: Yeah.
UNKNOWN: Just want to call him?
MR. BROWN: Yeah.
11 UNKNOWN: At 1:307
12 MR_ INGALDSON: We'll call and check the schedule.

,_.
- R I T R T T

MR. INGALDSON: Okay. Let's just call in the

12 same -- twice at the same time by Sergeant Simon and .
13 myself. 13 MR. BROWN: You guys»do not get to leave without me.
14 Q Soabout four times then? 14 L LOUE L SO B G S
15 A  When he was on his belly? 13 LUSERE S G G .
16 Q Yes. 16 MR. INGALDSON: Wc'.ll tell them to wait.
. MR. BROWN: Hold on just a second. No, no, no, you
17 A No, twice. 17 hold oo
18 Q You said twice by you and twice by Simon. 18 MR. INGALDSON: We'll make sure they wait.
19 MR. BROWN: That's the plane, isn't it? 19 (OfF record)
20 A Heonlyhad... 20
21 MR. INGALDSON: Hmm? 21
22 MR. BROWN: That's the airplane. All nght. 22
23 MR. INGALDSON: [ think it's (indiscemible - 23
24 simultancous speaking). 24
28 MR. BROWN: How are we going to wrap this up though? | 25
. Page 39 Page 41
) I mean, obviously, I've got to get to this..... 1 TRANSCRIBER'S CERTIFICATE
2 MR. WIDMER: Well..... 2 I, Linda S. Foley, hereby certify that the foregoing
3 MR. BROWN: ....because [ think it — you know, let 3 pages numbered 2 through 40 are a true, accurate, and complete
4 me turn this off real..... 4 transcript of videotaped deposition of Nathan Joseph (Vol. )
5 MR. INGALDSON: It's — it was..... S in Case No. 4BE-07-00026 CI, Thomas J. Olson v. City of Hooper
6 MR. BROWN: Well.... 6 Bay, Officer Dimitri Oaks, Officer Charles Simon, Officer Nathan
7 MR. INGALDSON: Some of it's getting a little 7 Joseph, transcribed by me from a copy of the clectronic sound
8 argumentative now and we could count the times that it's..... 8 recording to the best of my knowledge and ability.
9 MR. BROWN: [ think it's getting argumentative s
10 because 'm in a hurry, to be quite honest with you, and [ can | 10 May 20, 2008 N
11 sce that happening. [ just need..... 11 Linda 5. Foley, Transcriber
12 MR. INGALDSON: But if you want to finish it, [ 12
13 mean, we can do the rest by phone probably, don't you..... 13
14 MR. BROWN: We could do that in the moming if you | 14
15 want to do that. 15
16 Q Can you be by a phone in the moming? 16
17 A It depends on what time it is. 17
18 Q What time's good for you? 13
19 A [don't know. 13
20 Q Youdon't know alot of stuff. Tell ine what would work | 23
21 for you. 2l
22 MR WIDMER: Why don't we just continue the -- just } 22
23— why don't we just continue with (indiscernible - 23
24 simultancous speaking) and then we will figure it out. 24
25
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IN THE SUPERIOR COURT FOR THE STATE OF ALASKA n
L
FOURTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT AT BETHEL
r
THOMAS J. OLSON, ) b
[
)
.
plaintiff, } :
) '
V. ) i
)
{‘
CITY OF HOOPER BAY, ) lg
OFFICER DIMITRI OAKS, ) :
3
OFFICER CHARLES SIMON and ) i
OFFICER NATHAN JOSEPH, ) .
[}
) ;
Defendants. )
® )
No. 4BE-07-00026 CI
VOLUME II ‘i
!
TELEPHONIC DEPOSITION OF NATHAN JOSEPH Ny
|
Pages 41 through 52, inclusive lI
]
May 15, 2008 )
Bethel, Alaska
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Page 42 Page 44
IN'THE SUPERIOR COURT FOR THE STATE OF ALASKA 1 INDEX
FOURTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT AT BETHEL 2
I 3 THOMAS J. OLSON, ) 3
4 ) 4 EXAMINATION BY: PAGE(s)
S PlamofY, ) 5
6 ) 6 Mr. Brown 16
7 V. ) 9
8 ) 8  Mr. Widmer 51
9 CITY OF HOOPER BAY. ) 9
10 OFFICER DIMITRI OAKS, ) 10 EXHIBITS: IDENTIFIED
11 OFFICER CHARLES SIMON and ) 11
12 OFFICER NATHAN JOSEPH, ) 12 9. Documcnt 46
13 ) 13
14 Defendants. ) 14
1s - . ) 1s
16 16
17 No. 4BE-07-00026 CI 17
18 18
19 TELEPHONIC DEPOSITION OF NATHAN JOSEPH 19
20 20
21 takcnonbchnlfoﬁhe?lumﬁﬁ:pummumnodcc,mme 21
22 offices of Power and Brown, LLC, 460 Ridgecrest Drive, 22
23 Suite 113, Bethel, Alaska, before Sean E. Brown, a Notary 23
24 Public for the State of Alaska. 24
25 25
Page 43 Page 45
1 APPEARANCES 1 Bethel, Alaska, May 15, 2008
2 2
3 For the PlaintifF: 3 MR. BROWN: Okay. Are you actually talking into the
4 SEAN E. BROWN 4 phonc or are you talking into a speaker phone?
s POWER & BROWN, LLC 5 MR. JOSEPH: Speaking into the phone.
6 Box 1809 6 MR. BROWN: Okay. I just need you to speak up. [
7 Bethel, Alaska 99559 7 can hear Bill really well but you are not coming through very
8 (907) 5434700 8 well so I need you to speak up. Okay?
9 9 MR. JOSEPH: Okay.
10 For the Defendants: 10 MR. BROWN: Okay. That's much better so if you
11 11 couldjusttalk)ikcthat.thatwmﬂdbcgrw. We are
12 MATTHEW WIDMER 12 recording this here in our office at Power and Brown and we
13 ANGSTMAN LAW OFFICE 13 will proceed forward. If we could start, Sergeant Joseph, the
14 Box 585 14 last time that you and I were together there in Hooper Bay, !
15 Bethel, Alaska 99559 1S put you under oath. If you could just raise your right hand
16 (907) 543-2972 16 and we'll put you under oath again.
17 17 MR. JOSEPH: Okay.
18 WILLIAM H. INGAI DSON (telephonicaily) | 18 (Oath administered)
L9 INGALDSON, MAASSEN & FITZGERALD, PC |19 MR. JOSEPH: Yes.
20 813 West Third Avenue 20 MR BROWN: You may put your hand down. If cach
21 Anchorage, Alaska 99501 21 participant could tell their name? My name is Sean Brown and
22 {907) 258-8750 72 1 am representing the plaintiff in this matter. Thomas Olson.
23 23 MR. WIDMER: My name is Matthew Widmer. I'm with
24 <4 Angstman | aw Office and represent Sergeant Joseph and Sergeant
’ 25 Simon as well as Officer Oaks in this matter.
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